
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
RReegguullaarr  MMeeeettiinngg  

NNoovveemmbbeerr  66,,  22002233  



November 2, 2023  6:45:47 PM 

 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2023 

COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM, 116 ADAMS STREET 
PLYMOUTH, NC  27962 

 
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Walker 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
   Approval of Meeting Agenda 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda: 

a) Regular Session Minutes:  August 7, 2023, September 5, 2023, and October 2, 2023; 
Special Called Meeting Minutes:  August  28, 2023, September 26, 2023, October 24, 
2023, and November 1, 2023 
Closed Session Minutes:  July 5, 2022, August 1, 2022, September 6, 2022, October 3, 
2022, November 7, 2022, December 5, 2022, January 2023, February 6, 2023, March 6, 
2023, April 3, 2023, May 1, 2023, June 5, 2023, August 2023, and October 23, 2023 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) RESO 2023-034 Surplus Real Property—519 Jefferson Ave. 
d) RESO 2023-035 Surplus Real Property—305 E. Fourth St. 
e) RESO 2023-036 Surplus Real Property—West Main St. 
f) Proclamation 2023-037:  Veterans Day 2023 
 

Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3–5-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3 6:20 PM Departmental Information Update— Cooperative Extension’s “Report to the 

People”: Ms. Rebecca Liverman, Cooperative Extension Director & Staff 
 
Item 4 6:40 PM 4 Life Training Awareness in Washington County:  Ms. Annette Ward, EMS 

Deputy Director 
 
Item 5 6:50 PM Update on Center for Family Violence Prevention:  Ms. Doretha Garrett, Victim 

Advocate II                                                                  
 
Item 6 7:00 PM Rezoning Public Hearing: Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning/Inspections/Safety 

Director  
 
Item 7 7:20 PM Exempt Flex Time Off Policy, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
 
Item 8 7:30 PM Boards & Committees:  Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 

a) Appoint New Trustee to the Beaufort County Community College Board of 
Trustees 

   



November 2, 2023  6:45:47 PM 

Item 9 7:40 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers: Ms. Missy 
Dixon, Finance Officer 

 
Item 10 7:50 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners:  CM/CA, Finance Officer, or Clerk 

a) Travel Per Diem Policy, Mr. Curtis Potter 
 

Item 11 8:00 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  
(attorney-client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 

 
Recess/Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  November 6, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a)       Regular Session Minutes:  August 7, 2023, September 5, 2023, and October 2, 2023; 
Special Called Meeting Minutes:  August  28, 2023, September 26, 2023, October 24, 
2023, and November 1, 2023 

 Closed Session Minutes:  July 5, 2022, August 1, 2022, September 6, 2022, October 3, 
2022, November 7, 2022, December 5, 2022, January 2023, February 6, 2023, March 6, 
2023, April 3, 2023, May 1, 2023, June 5, 2023, August 2023, and October 23, 2023 

 The Regular Session and Special Called Meeting Minutes will be attached at the end of 
this package.  You have already received all of the Closed Session Meeting Minutes 
and your approval of the Consent Agenda tonight will also include your approval of 
those minutes. 

 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 

 See attached. 
 

c) RESO 2023-034 Surplus Real Property—519 Jefferson Ave. 
d) RESO 2023-035 Surplus Real Property—305 E. Fourth St. 
e) RESO 2023-036 Surplus Real Property—West Main St. 

 All of these are attached. 
 

f) Proclamation 2023-037:  Veterans Day 2023 
See attached. 

 
 

































Washington County Resolution 2023-037 
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org

RESOLUTION 2023-037 
PROCLAMATION 

VETERANS DAY 2023 
 

WHEREAS, the contributions and sacrifices of the people who served in the Armed Forces have been vital 
in maintaining our freedoms and way of life; and  

 
WHEREAS, tens of millions of Americans have served in the Armed Forces of the United States during 

the past century; and  
 

WHEREAS, hundreds of thousands of Americans have given their lives while serving in the Armed Forces 
in the past century; and  

 
WHEREAS, our state is the most military state in the nation and has the third largest military presence in 

the country, and is home to more than 736,000 veterans, 94,369 Active-Duty military, 11,000 National Guard 
and Reserves, and their families, and that includes the 745 veterans from Washington County; and 

 
WHEREAS, our veterans are brave and selfless individuals who, when duty called, willingly put themselves 

in harm’s way to defend lives and liberty of others; and  
 
WHEREAS,  their abiding patriotism and enduring devotion to the ideals on which the United States is 

founded can never fail to inspire us; and  
 
WHEREAS, our veterans understand the important task before those American servicemembers now 

keeping watch; and  
 
WHEREAS, all citizens of Washington County must strive to ensure that ours remains a land worthy of 

the great love our veterans have shown for it.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN, that the Commissioners of Washington County, North Carolina, 
in keeping with the time honored tradition of recognizing and honoring our veterans, do hereby call upon the 
citizenry of Washington County to participate in services and to observe the eleventh hour of the eleventh day of 
the eleventh month with expressions of gratitude to all veterans known to them and to sacrifices of all those who 
fought so valiantly, on the seas, in the air, and on foreign shores, to preserve our heritage of freedom, and let us 
re-consecrate ourselves to the task of promoting an enduring peace so that efforts shall not have been in vain; 
and 

 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


Washington County Resolution 2023-037 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

THEREFORE, ALSO LET IT BE KNOWN, that the Commissioners of Washington County, North Carolina 
do hereby proclaim November 11, 2023, as 

 

“Veterans Day” 
 

in Washington County and we urge all citizens in our County to join us in the special observance. 
 

 
Signed this date:  November 6, 2023. 
 

               
        ________________________________   
                 Julius Walker, Jr., Chair 
        Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________       
    Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
           Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     November 6, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally, this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     November 6, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Departmental Information Update—Cooperative Extension’s “Report 

to the People”, Ms. Rebecca Liverman, Cooperative Extension Director 
& Staff 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Each year, Cooperative Extension gives the Commissioners a “Report to the People”—
which is basically a yearly update on activities that have taken place since last November 
in Cooperative Extension. 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     November 6, 2023 
 
ITEM:        4-Life Training Awareness in Washington County, Ms. Annette Ward, 

EMS Deputy Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Ward will give the attached presentation to bring awareness to the County and the 
Commissioners on how to do CPR, use NARCAN if needed, etc. 
 
Please see attached. 
 



RACE CARS 
Trials

WASHINGTON & TYRRELL COUNTIES



Did you know?

of Cardiac Arrest victims survive.

10%
Currently in our communities in 2023 out of 19 dispatched codes 3 have survived



RAndomized Cluster Evaluation of Cardiac 
ARrest Systems

▪ A new Duke Clinical Research Institute (DCRI)-led pragmatic 
cluster-randomized trial will test the implementation of 
community interventions to improve survival for people with 
cardiac arrest.

▪ The trial is one of the most innovative randomized trials to be 
done in the US. RAndomized Cluster Evaluation of Cardiac 
ARrest Systems (RACE-CARS) is the first U.S. fully “registry-
based” trial.

▪ The trial builds on a rich history of Duke studies to implement 
guideline-based treatments in acute cardiovascular care.



Cardic Arrest

• Approximately 350,000 people suffer out-of-hospital cardiac arrest 
(OHCA) per year in the US, and only 8% to 10% survive to hospital 
discharge.

• Nationally, less than 40% of patients receive bystander CPR and 29% 
have an AED applied prior to paramedic arrival.

• Median time from 911 call to paramedic arrival is more than 7 
minutes, and more than 70% of patients do not receive timely 
defibrillation.

• Little evidence that these statistics have substantially improved 
despite 30 years of work.



CPR
4 Life training “hands on CPR” is designed 
to make everyone feel more comfortable 
with doing chest compressions. Everyone 
can help to save a life; it just takes a little 
training and confidence. 



4-Life Training

We have had many classes and 
are planning many more! 



AED
The quick ability to apply an AED to a 
patient has a better chance of shocking 
their heart into a rhythm. 

We have already had 3 donated and 
working for many more!



Donated AED’s 

▪ The first three donated AEDs 
went to Plymouth FD and Roper 
FD

▪ We are working on getting more 
AEDs through other donations. 

▪ Goal is to put them in all Fire 
Depts, Law enforcement cars, 
and in public places such as 
parks and recreation areas. 



Time frames
The faster “hands on CPR” and AEDs are 
applied the better chance the patient has. 

With more people in the community with 
the ability to assist the better the chances 
are of life saves. 

3 minutes without air to the brain begins 
cellular damage to the brain. We MUST 
make every second count! 






So, I bet you are asking 
“what do you want?”
WE NEED YOUR SUPPORT! WITH EVERY SECOND COUNTING WE NEED ALL HANDS-ON 
DECK. 

WE ARE ASKING THAT YOU MAKE IT MANDATORY FOR ALL COUNTY EMPLOYEES TO 
HAVE HANDS ON CPR TRAINING. OF COURSE, WE ARE HAPPY TO TEACH EVERYONE.



Thank you!



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     November 6, 2023 
 
ITEM:       Update on Center for Family Violence Prevention: Ms. Doretha Garrett, 

Victim Advocate II 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Doretha Garrett will give the Board an update on the abovementioned subject. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:     November 6, 2023 
 
ITEM:      Rezoning Public Hearing, Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning/Inspections 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
The Planning Board received a Petition for Zoning Change Order/Amendment of Zoning 
Ordinance from Jernigan Properties, Inc. to rezone an area  from RA (Residential) to CC 
(Commercial) It also requires a hearing by the Commissioners. Tonight is that hearing.  
After reviewing the documents: 
 
CONDUCT A PUBLIC LEGISLATIVE HEARING ON THIS MATTER 

i. Open the public hearing 
ii. Announce any rules applicable to public hearing participation (sign up, 

time limits, etc.) 
iii. Staff presentation of the Application and Planning Department 

Recommendation 
iv. Hearing Participant Comments (in signup sheet order) 
v. Board Questions & Discussions 

J- Consistency with current plans 
K- Reasonableness 

vi. Close the public hearing 
 

B. MOTION TO: 
i. Continue the public hearing to another specific date/time/location if 

desired; 
or 

ii. Deny the application; 
or 

iii. Approve the application by adopting the attached Ordinance Amending 
the Official Zoning Map of Washington County.   

 
(See attached). 



Agenda Item Memo   Page 1 of 3 
 

       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: November 6th, 2023    MEMO Date: November 3, 2023   
SUBJECT:  Rezoning Application Z090723-01 from Jernigan Properties, Inc. 
DEPARTMENT: Planning 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Planning Board Recommendation (1pg) 
B- Planning Board Minutes excerpts re 10/19/23 Public Hearing for Rezoning Application (7pgs) 

- Includes Chronological Timeline presented at hearing 
- Includes Statement of Reasonableness and Consistency with the Washington County Land 

Use Plan presented at hearing 
- Includes full list of current permitted uses of CC zoned property 

C- Published Notice of Hearing verification (1pg) 
D- Mailed Notice of Hearing list and verification (1pg) 
E- Surrounding Landowners List (2pgs) 
F- Article IV, Section B: Applicant’s written responses to statements of purpose, feasibility and 

justification of the proposed amendment (3pgs) 
G- Rezoning – Staff Overlay Map (for illustrative purposes showing proposed rezoning area) (1pg) 
H- Draft Ordinance to Amend the Official Zoning Map (2pgs) 
I- Boundary and Recombination Survey dated 8/16/23 (1pg) 

PURPOSE:  To conduct a public legislative hearing to consider an application submitted by Jernigan Properties 
Inc. to rezone 10.427 acres as shown in a plat entitled “Boundary and Recombination Survey for Jernigan 
Properties Inc.” prepared by Paul J. Toti Land Surveying, PC.  Dated 8/16/2023 project # 23042, from its current 
R-A (Residential Area Single Family District) to C-C (Corridor Commercial/Retail Commercial District). 
 
BACKGROUND:   

 
A. Refer to the Planning Board Public Hearing Minutes (including a staff created timeline and 

reasonableness statement) along with the other attached materials (including the applicant’s written 
responses to information requested pursuant to Article IV, Section B of the Washington County Zoning 
Ordinance, and the Survey and staff created Overlay Map illustrating the location of the proposed 
rezoning.  

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Agenda Item Memo   Page 2 of 3 
 

B. Adam Lovelady of the UNC School of Government provides a good general overview of the procedures 
for legislative development decisions in the following Coates’ Canons Blog Post: 
https://canons.sog.unc.edu/2021/10/procedures-for-legislative-development-decisions/   

 
ANALYSIS:   

 
A. Zoning Map Amendments:  A request to rezone certain property is treated the same as a request to amend 

the zoning ordinance itself, and is considered a legislative decision making process rather than a quasi-
judicial decision making process.  Such zoning amendments are governed by the applicable provisions of 
NCGS 160D and the Washington County Zoning Ordinance including without limitation Article IV 
thereof entitled “Zoning Amendments”.   
 

B. Legislative Public Hearing Procedures: Per NCGS 160D-601 “before adopting, amending, or repealing 
any ordinance or development regulation… the governing board shall hold a legislative hearing.” A 
legislative hearing is a hearing to solicit public comment on a proposed legislative decision.  These 
hearings have commonly been referred to as public hearings and notably, are different from quasi judicial 
or other evidentiary hearings.   
 

i. A formal legislative hearing on a proposed amendment is a chance for citizens to make their 
views known directly to the governing board.  Because a legislative hearing is not an evidentiary 
hearing, there is no need to have sworn testimony.  (Evidentiary hearings are required for appeals, 
variances, and special use permits).   
 

ii. In a legislative hearing, citizens are free to offer their personal opinions and views in the hearing 
and to lobby board members before and after the hearing.  The board need not make any formal 
findings of fact at the conclusion of the hearing, though a written statement briefly setting out the 
board’s rationale for its decision on any zoning amendment is required.  

 
iii. Nevertheless, it is important that these legislative hearings to conducted fairly.  Reasonable rules 

may be established to limit the number of speakers, the amount of time each speaker is given, and 
the overall length of the hearing.  The board is not obligated to allow everyone present to speak.  
Speakers can also be required to limit their remarks to the subject of the hearing. 

 
C. Consistency Statement: Per NCGS 160D-605 to amend the zoning ordinance, the governing board must 

approve a statement describing whether that action is consistent or inconsistent with the jurisdiction’s 
adopted comprehensive or land use plan.  That statement need not be long but should briefly describe how 
the decision is or is not consistent with the plan. 
    

D. Reasonableness Statement: Per NCGS 160D-605 for zoning map amendments (rezonings), the governing 
board must also adopt a statement of reasonableness for the rezoning.  This statement can be combined 
with the consistency statement if desired and approved in the same motion as the final decision or action 
taken or separately.  In considering reasonableness, the board may consider, among other factors, 

i. The size, physical conditions, and other attributes of the area proposed to be rezoned, 
ii. The benefits and detriments to the landowners, the neighbors, and the surrounding community, 
iii. The relationship between the current actual and permissible development on the tract and 

adjoining areas and the development that would be permissible under the proposed amendment; 
iv. Why the action taken is in the public interest; and 
v. Any changed conditions warranting the amendment.   

https://canons.sog.unc.edu/2021/10/procedures-for-legislative-development-decisions/


Agenda Item Memo   Page 3 of 3 
 

E. Scope of Review & Impact of Decision:  It is also important to remember that although the application for 
rezoning includes certain site specific information about potential plans for development, the legislative 
review process should not be focused on any site specific details (which are tentative plans and are not 
guarantees or conditions), but should instead be focused on the potential impacts of changing the zoning 
upon the property in question regardless of what its eventual use or site development might actually turn 
out to be. If the property is rezoned, the current or future owner of the property could ultimately develop 
it into any other use which is permitted under the new zoning district without recourse.  Any further 
development of the property will remain subject to applicable building permit approval and/or site 
approval requirements of NCGS 160D and/or the Washington County Zoning Ordinance. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  No known direct financial impacts.  Indirectly rezoning of this property to C-C could 
potentially lead to its commercial development and corresponding property tax base growth. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): After reviewing the attached materials, staff recommends: 
 

A. CONDUCT a PUBLIC LEGISLATIVE HEARING ON THIS MATTER 
i. Open the public hearing  
ii. Announce any rules applicable to public hearing participation (sign up, time limits, etc) 
iii. Staff presentation of the Application and Planning Department Recommendation 
iv. Hearing Participant Comments (in signup sheet order) 
v. Board Questions & Discussions 

J- Consistency with current plans 
K- Reasonableness 

vi. Close the public hearing 
 

B. MOTION TO: 
i. Continue the public hearing to another specific date/time/location if desired;  

 
or 

 
ii. Deny the application;  

 
or  

 
iii. Approve the application by adopting the attached Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning 

Map of Washington County 

  

































32

32

E US Hwy 64

32

32

45

45

N
C
-4
5
N

E US Hwy 64

32

6787.00-29-0723

6787.00-19-6636

6787.00-29-4852

6787.00-19-7413

6787.00-19-6345

6788.00-40-8589

6788.00-20-8460

6788.00-20-9194

6787.00-39-0419

6787.00-49-38726787.00-39-3835

6788.00-20-3023

6787.00-29-7758

6787.00-19-9964

6788.00-10-8147

6787.00-47-0624

6788.00-20-3353

6787.00-19-5817

6788.00-31-3118
6788.00-51-0563

Rezoning - Staff Overlay Map

Esri Community Maps Contributors, State of North Carolina DOT, ©
OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies,
Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA

CI

Parcels

Centerlines

anno

11/3/2023, 12:45:32 PM
0 0.06 0.120.03 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

Esri Community Maps Contributors, State of North Carolina DOT, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA |



       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

 
ORDINANCE 2023-001 

 
TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF WASHINGTON COUNTY 

TO REZONE MULTIPLE PARCELS AT THE INTERSECTION OF US64 AND NC45 

 
WHEREAS, Jernigan Properties, Inc. requests that the Official Zoning Map of Washington 

County be amended by rezoning multiple parcels of land, from the R-A (Rural Area Single Family 
Residential District) to the C-C (Corridor Commercial/Retail Commercial District); and 

 
WHEREAS, the impacted parcels (or portions thereof) include the following: 6788.00-20-8460; 

6788.00-11-2278; 6788.00-20-9194; 6788.00-20-3353; and 6788.00-20-4055; and 
 
WHEREAS, a legislative public hearing was conducted on November 6th, 2023 in consideration 

of this request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Planning Board considered this proposed map amendment, 

identified as Z090723-01 at another legislative public hearing held on October 19th, 2023 and 
unanimously recommended approval; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with NCGS 160D-605, the Washington County Board of 

Commissioners finds the following: 
 
1. That the proposed zoning map amendment is consistent with the Washinton County Land Use Plan; 

and 
 
 

2. That the proposed zoning map amendment is deemed reasonable in light of the facts and 
circumstances presented. 
 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners, after hearing all persons wishing to 
comment on this request, desires to approve said request. 
 
NOW, THEREOFRE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS THAT: 
 

1. The Official Zoning Map of Washinton County is hereby amended to rezone all of that property 
more particularly described within a plat entitled “Boundary and Recombination Survey for 
Jernigan Properties Inc.” prepared by Paul J. Toti Land Surveying, PC. Dated 8/16/2023 project 
# 23042 attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference from the R-A (Rural Area Single 
Family Residential District) to the C-C (Corridor Commercial/Retail Commercial District);  
 

2. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the recordation of a deed actually combining such 
property into a single parcel by Jernigan Properties Inc. or its successors in interest at any time 
prior to December 31st, 2025.  If no such action has occurred by such date, this Ordinance shall 
be deemed null and void. 
 

 

Adopted this ____ day of __________________, ______. 
 

  

 
 
 

      _____________________________________ 

       Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 

      Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCCCC 
Clerk to the Board  





 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:     November 6, 2023 
 
ITEM:       Exempt Flex Time Off Policy,  Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Potter will present a resolution for approval on the abovementioned subject. 
                 
 
Please see attached documentation. 



Agenda Item Memo   Page 1 of 3 
 

       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: November 6th, 2023    MEMO Date: October 31, 2023   
SUBJECT:  Flexible Time Off Policy for Exempt County Employees 
DEPARTMENT: Human Resources 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Proposed Resolution 2023-038(2pgs) 

PURPOSE:  To adopt a resolution amending the Washington County Personnel Policy to establish a formal 
policy permitting exempt employees that regularly work overtime hours, to earn and accumulate a certain number 
of hours credit for that time, for future use toward time off requests, in a similar manner as compensatory time off 
is earned and used by non-exempt employees. 
 
BACKGROUND:   

 
A. Diane Juffras UNC School of Government Blog Post: https://canons.sog.unc.edu/2013/02/the-mysteries-

of-comp-time-revealed/ provides a great broad overview of comp time, including a specific analysis of 
“Overtime or Comp Time for Exempt Employees” just before its conclusion which may prove useful for 
background and analysis purposes of this topic. 
 

B. Overtime (OT) is traditionally measured as the number of hours worked over 40 on a weekly basis. 
 

C. Compensatory time off (“Comp Time”) is an alternative form of compensating non-exempt public 
employees uniquely available only to public employers.  However, many private employers deliberately 
but mistakenly use this same term to refer to various time off systems which can cause confusion about 
the term’s use and actual legal meaning.  
 

D. County employees track & report their total time worked using a monthly pay period/timesheet. 
i. OT is calculated and reflected for each week in each monthly pay period/timesheet. 
ii. Weeks are frequently split between two monthly pay periods/timesheets requiring constant 

carryover reconciliation from month to month. 
 

  

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 

https://canons.sog.unc.edu/2013/02/the-mysteries-of-comp-time-revealed/
https://canons.sog.unc.edu/2013/02/the-mysteries-of-comp-time-revealed/


Agenda Item Memo   Page 2 of 3 
 

E. Non-Exempt (Most) Employees: Depending on the department and/or regular work schedule, non-exempt 
employees are compensated for OT worked by either being paid actual OT wages, or by being paid with 
Comp Time.  Both methods are earned at a 1:1 rate for 37.5 hour employees until they reach 40 hours in a 
week, and then at a 1.5:1 or “time and a half” rate for all hours worked over 40 each week.  Comp Time is 
also subject to certain legal limitations and regulations such as maximum caps on the amount that can be 
earned at any one time, reasonable use requirements, and cash out value upon separation. 
 

F. Exempt Employees: Unlike non-exempt employees, an employer is not legally required to pay any extra 
compensation to exempt employees for actual OT hours worked, but may do so voluntarily if desired.  
Due largely to the traditionally monthly format of county timesheets, and the lack of a clear policy about 
how exactly exempt employees should track and apply any actual OT worked against time off that is 
taken, different methods for doing so have periodically arisen and caused confusion for employees and 
the payroll office alike.  Trying to determine a fair and consistent method for how many hours of actual 
time vs. sick or vacation time an exempt employee should be required to apply within each week, month, 
or year has been a persistent challenge in the absence of clear policy guidance on this matter.  This is 
particularly true for those exempt employees who consistently work excessive amounts of overtime each 
week or month.   
 

ANALYSIS:   
 

A. Extensive administrative discussions have been held over the years with HR, Finance, and some of the 
more frequently impacted departments including Finance, EMS, and DSS.  From these discussions three 
primary alternative policy choices have been identified and further evaluated as follows: 

 
i. Weekly Basis: Require exempt employees (and HR) to track, calculate, and apply any OT worked 

each week toward any other time taken off that same week.  Under this method an employee 
might work sixty or more actual hours of overtime in a monthly pay period, but would still have 
to apply and use sick or vacation time in a single week in which they did not actually work the 
full number of hours that week.  Not recommended. 
 

ii. Monthly Basis: Require exempt employees (and HR) to track, calculate, and apply any OT 
worked each monthly pay period/timesheet toward any other time taken off during that same 
monthly pay period/timesheet.  This method is much easier to track and account for due primarily 
to not having to make weekly calculations, and relying instead on monthly calculations which are 
more readily reflected in the same monthly pay period/timesheet format already in countywide 
use.  It is also more flexible for the employee within an individual monthly pay period, but there 
may still be occasions when an employee ends up working an excessive amount of OT in their 
monthly pay period, or over several monthly pay periods, without any real opportunity to apply 
that time toward any sick or vacation time taken in those same pay periods.  This could also result 
inadvertently from the often unforeseeable timing of illness and OT work schedules.  

 
iii. Rollover Basis: Permit exempt employees (and HR) to track, calculate, and apply any OT worked 

each monthly pay period/timesheet toward any other time taken off in the same pay 
period/timesheet; and also to carryover the remaining balance of OT hours worked (up to a set 
limit to limit the value and potential abuse of this policy) to future pay periods/timesheets to be 
used for the same purpose of offsetting time taken off by the employee.  The monthly timesheet 
format is already well suited to easily track and account for such time, in a similar manner as the 
county already currently tracks and carries over comp time balances for non-exempt employees.  



Agenda Item Memo   Page 3 of 3 
 

This approach was also considered by staff to be the most flexible and equitable to balance the 
employers and employees needs while attempting to sustain employee morale and retention for 
the most impacted employees who consistently work OT hours every pay period/timesheet 
without additional compensation.  Recommended. 

 
- The proposed Resolution attached to this Memo sets out to establish this third policy by: 

Permitting exempt employees to accumulate up to one regular work week’s worth of time 
credit (depending upon their regular weekly schedule of 37.5 or 40 hours) to be referred to as 
“Exempt Flex Time” and earned at a flat 1:1 basis (not 1:1.5 or time and a half).  Flex Time 
will be tracked and useable by exempt employees in the same manner as non-exempt 
employees currently track and use Comp Time.  However, unlike Comp Time, Flex Time 
shall have no independent monetary value, and shall be forfeited and lost upon an exempt 
employees separation or termination without any further compensation owed as a result of 
such loss.  

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  Nominal indirect expenses associated with potentially higher sick and vacation accrual 
values for impacted employees is technically possible.  However, management believes the risk limitations 
created by virtue of the one week’s worth of time limitation and non-payout provision will limit such risks.  
Management also believes the potential nominal risks are firmly outweighed by the higher value of maintaining 
uniformity in overall countywide time off practices and procedures, and in maintaining positive morale among 
critical exempt employees regularly working long uncompensated OT hours on a repetitive weekly and/or 
monthly basis. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 

1. MOTION TO VOTE approving the attached Resolution 2023-038 as 
presented.  



POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823   

RESOLUTION 2023-038 
TO AMEND THE WASHINGTON COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY 

TO INCLUDE A LIMITED FLEXIBLE TIME OFF POLICY FOR EXEMPT EMPLOYEES 

WHEREAS, the County Manager has recently recommended that certain revisions be made by 
amendment to the current Washington County Personnel Policy (the “policy”) to more clearly address 
and guide employees and administrative staff in uniformly interpreting and implementing the terms and 
conditions of that policy under certain circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to approve and make such recommended amendments to certain 
portions of the Washington County Personnel Policy as more particularly described below.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That Article IV: Compensation; Section 2: Compensatory Time/Overtime of the Washington
County Personnel Policy is hereby amended, revised and restated in its entirety as follows:

Section 2: Overtime, Compensatory Time Off & Exempt Flex Time Off 

This policy shall not contravene the provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act 
(FLSA). 

2. That a new section entitled “Exempt Flex Time” shall be inserted within and become a part
of Article IV of the Washington County Personnel Policy as follows:

Section 2D: Exempt Flex Time Off 

A regular exempt full time employee may be granted exempt flex time off at the rate of one 
hour per hour worked over their regularly scheduled number of hours (37.5 or 40) in a single 
workweek.   

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 



Similar to the use of compensatory time off, exempt flex time off may be used by eligible 
employees in lieu of vacation or sick time in the same pay period.  Unused exempt flex time 
may also accumulate and carry forward for use in future pay periods, up to a maximum 
balance equal to the same number of regularly scheduled workweek hours for each eligible 
employee (37.5 or 40). 

However, exempt flex time off has no equivalent monetary value, and no employee shall be 
paid for any unused exempt flex time off upon separation or for any other reason.  Exempt 
flex time off is a voluntarily extended benefit subject to modification or rescission by the 
County at any time without further compensation.   

The County Manager is also hereby authorized to adopt uniformly applicable limits on the 
maximum amount of exempt flex time off employees may use in any annual period.    

3. Except as specifically stated and amended herein, the Washington County Personnel Policy,
as previously modified or amended from time to time, and currently in effect as of the date of
this Resolution shall remain in full force and effect hereafter.

Adopted this ____ day of __________________, ______. 

_____________________________________ 

Julius Walker, Jr., Chair 

Washington County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board  



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:     November 6, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
BEAUFORT COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE (BCCC) BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES 
 
Mr. Potter will speak about this.   The Commissioners need to appoint a new additional 
trustee to the BCCC Board of Trustees.  Currently, Ms. Linda West occupies one seat.  
 
This additional position can be held by a Commissioner. 
 
The Commissioners will be asked to bring forth a name to submit to the BCCC Board of 
Trustees. 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  9 
 
       DATE:  November 6, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer, will discuss the enclosed budget transfers and budget 
amendments for Board’s approval/disapproval and information. (See attached.) 
 
 
 













































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
 
       DATE:     November 6, 2023 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a)  Travel Per Diem Policy, Mr. Curtis Potter 
 
 
 Department Head Reports from September 2023 (see attached) 
 Statistic Reports (see attached) 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   11 
   
       DATE:     November 6, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-
client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 



 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
October 2, 2023 

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING:    
The EMS Division officially has (1) full-time Paramedic position and (1) Basic EMT position 
available.  The Transport Division has two full-time EMT positions available. The full-time offer 
we made at the time of our last EMS Report was not accepted “due to the pay being too low 
compared to what I currently make” (his words).  This young man lives here in the county.  
Unfortunately, even with the recent adjustments, our starting pay is below our surrounding 
counties.  This is causing great difficulty with recruitment and retainment.  We are also accepting 
applications for part time positions for all levels (EMT, A-EMT, and Paramedic).  
 
SAFETY AND PPE:  
COVID seems to have tapered off.  We had a total of 5 employees miss work due to COVID 
symptoms and positive tests.  Currently we do not have any employees out of work.  Our PPE is 
at a level to absorb spikes.  No issues getting the PPE supplies we need.   
 
OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:   
UNC PECC+ Program:  No new updates. 
   
Duke RACE-CARS Trial Program:  Deputy Director Annette Ward and Paramedic Kathryn 
Williams will be making a presentation at the next regional meeting to showcase our areas of 
success with the program to other counties participating in the trial.  
    
The Basic EMT class is running well with no loss of students and lots of student participation.  
 
Our seated EMS Continuing Education has been a struggle with classes being cancelled 
frequently by BCCC due to their lack of instructor availability.  This is resulting in our training 
being offered online only which causes our providers to miss out on the very important aspect of 
“hands on” training.  As you are aware, BCCC is the only community college allowed to teach 
seated curriculum in this county.  If this trend continues as it has for the past 9 months, I would 
like to discuss the possibility of permitting other local community colleges to assist with seated 
classes in the county.  
 
Thank you for your continued support of EMS.   
 

Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
Recreation is good. We played our first football game on 9/16/23. 8u won and 10,12, did not.  It 
rained us out on 9/23 but we are looking forward to playing this Saturday at home.  Game time is 
10:00 am -- Washington Co. Recreation vs Camden Bears. 
 



 

Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
The Challenge hearing is completed, and early voting will begin on October 19th.  I have 
been testing machines. I have also been taking ID photos. I will be hard at work, doing a Mock 
Election on October 5th. 
 
 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 
Staffing: 
No changes. 
 
Programming: 

• We are in the last stages to submit all paperwork to receive Grassroots grant monies on 
behalf of the NC Arts Council; we will begin brainstorming who we will like to bring in 
to perform once we receive word that all paperwork has been received. 

• WIP (Works in Progress Knitting/Crocheting Group) and Storytime with Miss Brandy 
are ongoing Wednesday programs; WIP meets at noon and Storytime is at 10:30 (virtual 
sessions are recorded and posted due to lack of attendance) 

• “Nature Out Loud!” with Paul Mazzei program will be performed in December. 
• We are still actively planning programs as interest arises from the community. 

Library Business/Community Happenings: 
• Little Libraries are still being utilized; they are refilled at the end of each month for 

statistical purposes. 
• We received (6) shelving units that will be used in on children’s room to begin migrating 

Juvenile Non-Fiction back to its proper place. 
• The Pettigrew Regional Library Librarians will be attending the NCLA Conference 

October 16-20th in Winston-Salem. 
• We have received a new Board Member applicant; the nominee will brought before 

Board at next meeting to be discussed and voted for. 
• Donations are actively being received and processed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
  

 



 

 
 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. We remain busy with finishing personal property appeals and other work that 
was created after the tax bills were mailed.   

2. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services.  
3. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 

releases, address corrections and general questions regarding motor vehicles.  
4. Continue to verify PINs for Deed filings, process Tax Certifications and assign 

addresses in GIS.  I have these daily.  Darlene Harrison backs me up as needed.    



 

5. Attended the Commissioner’s meeting and Darlene Harrison attended the 
Department Head meeting because I was out of the office. 

6. The Statistical report was submitted. 
7. Present-Use Value applications continue to come in for newly transferred 

properties.  We continue to receive phone calls or emails regarding the 
program.  

8. Received and processed several applications for motor vehicle exemptions.  
9. Continue to receive requests from businesses for “work papers” for their 

business listings.  We get these requests each year after the tax bills are mailed, 
they want to see what our depreciation schedule is.   

10. Interviews are scheduled for September 27th and 28th for open positions in the 
tax office. 

11. Darlene Harrison and Christal Watkins processed the refunds after the 
Commissioners approval for them.  

12. Darlene Harrison and I sat in on a Plat Review Officer Workshop Webex.  
13. I had several maps to review and approve as Review Officer.  
14. A couple of personnel in the office were out with Covid this month.  
15. Resolved printing issues that arose, usually we would have called our 

programmer about this, but Darlene Fikes and I were able to fix the issue.  
16. Sent information to Joe with Atlas in regard to our mapping program.    
17. Received the billing information for the Public Utility companies.  Their 

assessment comes from the NC Department of Revenue.  
 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
Permits Issued 27  
Inspections completed 34  
 
Additionally, daily inspection report reviews from TerraCon re: WashCo PK-12  
With several site visits and telephone consults with contractor and engineer  
 
Map Reviews for surveys 3  
 
Plan Reviews for Commercial: Royal Farms, Quality Oil, Sure Word of Prophecy, Cell Tower 
Construction on Hwy 32 S (TowerCom)  
 
Sept 4 Holiday – Labor Day  
 
Sept 7 Pre-application meeting for re-zoning at 64/45 from RA to CC, Customer Service 
Training with Rebecca and Renea  
 
Sept 21 Planning Board – Creswell – set Public Hearing for Oct 19 re: rezoning request  
 
Sept 22 Met with EM/Co Manager/Grants Adm/Fellow re: BRIC and Flood Mitigation  
 
Sept 25 Rode flood plain to assess after Hurricane Ophelia (CFM hat 



 

Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 

1. Discussed flooding issues with landowners on Hwy 45 due to improper practices of 
downstream logging operation. 

2. Discussed and arranged access to Weyerhaeuser land for contractors to review work 
for bidding purposes and future access to accomplish the work intended. 

3. Visited and discussed BMP options for Spruill Farm Conservation Project in Roper 
NC. 

4. Contacted Cooperators about present applications and intentions for future contracts. 
5. Attended Conservation Training in Greensboro NC (9-17-23/9-21-23) 
6. Attended Small Farm Fest in Williamston NC for a better understanding of certain 

farm operations in our area. 
7. Reviewed all the Bids for Clearing and Snagging, Aquatic Weed Spraying, and Maul 

Creek Maintenance. 
8. Attended Pocosin Lakes Grassy Ridge Stakeholder Meeting - Tuesday Sept. 26th 

from 1:00 - 3:00PM 
9. Planned to attend Scuppernong Steering Committee Meeting (Monday, October 23 

from 5:30-7:30pm at the 4-H Center in Columbia) 
10. Attempting to create folders for Job Approval Authority in Cover Crop, Residue & 

Tillage Management, and Land Smoothing BMPs. 
11. Created intended duties for Admin Assistant. 
12. Planned attendance of Education Committee meeting with assistant in Manteo NC on 

(9-29-23) from 12pm to 3pm. 

 
Landfill 
Mike Gray 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
 
 
 

https://goo.gl/maps/iC5m2dn2bdMoJsrR6


 

Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
August 
 

1. Review first invoice from CopyPro. Multiple errors found. Contact CopyPo to have  
corrected. Once corrected turn into Finance to be paid. 

2. Issue with voicemail on Co-op Extension phone system. Schedule repair. 
3. Complete decommission of MAIL Svr. Remove EXCHANGE Svr and MAIL Svr. 
4. Replace docking station on Facilities laptop. Package/Return docking station with issue. 
5. Make 20’ CAT6 cable for Facilities & 22’ CAT6 cable for Co Manager office. 
6. Troubleshoot issue with Tax, Finance & Co Manager bypass tray on copiers. 
7. Setup profile for Asia Melton, add to AD and email, setup MFA and scanning. Review 

settings with Asia. 
8. Setup AD and email for gpmanager. 
9. Clean up AD. 
10. Assist Rick and Randall with cable to be run from Magistrate office to IT for cameras. 
11. Discussions with Pasquotank and Perquimans Counties concerning tax software. 
12. Review MFA accounts. 
13. Research retractable ethernet cable. Email to Curtis. 
14. Multiple contacts with BrightSpeed concerning internet connections for VoIP. Contact  

MCNC to see if they have connections needed. 
15. Work with Jabari (VC3) on VoIP project. 
16. Troubleshoot issue with Jail booking printer. 
17. Work with Felicia Reese (Motorola) to schedule time for tech to replace antenna tone 

adapter and ups & return loaner equipment to Chowan County. Scheduled for 09/05/23. 
18. Troubleshoot issue with profile and fix connection to Edmunds and email for Recreation 

desktop and laptop. 
19. Move managementfellow email to pst. Discuss rlivingston email with Mary Moscato. Share  

cbirtcher email with Asia Melton. Setup profile for gpmanager. Move documents to shared 
folder. 

20. New postage machine installed on 08/14/23. Working with Pitney Bowes and Independent 
Mailing on issue with Finance and DSS account mix-up. 

21. Document instructions for postage machine review with Finance and Tax. 
22. Troubleshoot email issue for Phillip Hassell. 
23. Review BrightSpeed invoice to verify credit has been applied. 
24. Troubleshoot email issue for Michele Simpson. 
25. Correct scanning issue on EM/Inspections copier. 
26. Troubleshoot issue with incoming emails from support@cloudbadging.com 
27. Troubleshoot issue with authentication of email for Recreation Center. 
28. Review Onsite/Offsite Backups and Solarwinds Server EDR. 
29. Research refund check from BrightSpeed for Finance. 
30. Train on O365 issues with Michele Simpson and Linda Dickson. 
31. Discuss with Anna changes made by 911 Board that affect eligibility. Send email to Angie  

Turbeville with 911 Board and suggest best practices. Changes made in August affect  
32. counties since they already have budgets in place. 
33. Work with Anna and Missy on issue with 911 Revenue Expenditure Report to 911 Board. 
34. Attend online class om 08/23: Master Your Records 

mailto:support@cloudbadging.com


 

35. Attend PSAP meeting in Greensboro with Anna 08/24-08/25. Grant awards were voted  
on…Washington County received granting totaling $100,461.61 to complete 911 Motorola  
project…Yay For Our Team! 

36. Attend County Manager group meeting. 
37. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
38. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
39. Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager 
40. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
September 
   

1. Troubleshoot issue with Christal Watkins email. 
2. Contact 911 Board for information on AT&T PSP updates & 911 assessment. Discuss with 

Angie SEPSS & annunciator. Create binder with IT part of 911 assessment. 
3. Work with Missy and Anna on a $600 discrepancy on 911 Board Expenditure Revenue 

Statement. 
4. Schedule tech to work on Co-op phone system. 
5. Review with Sherri GeoComm updates and AT&T PSP. 
6. Discuss with Debbie the process for surplus of electronic equipment. 
7. Work with Motorola techs and account representative with equipment that needs to be 

upgraded/replaced. Create email to explain what has happened up to this point. 
8. Assist/Train Anna on surplus. Work in the server room. 
9. Pitney Bowes Issue: Finance and DSS account information is added incorrectly. Create 

multiple emails with documentation and email to Pitney Bowes, Independent Mailing, 
Missy and Lynn. Independent Mailing tech came onsite to work on postage meter with 
Pitney Bowes via phone. Accounts were not corrected. Missy and I had meeting via phone  
to correct accounts with Pitney Bowes. Will check October invoice to verify correct. 

10. Troubleshoot and repair issues with Recreation connection to Edmunds. Train Randy how 
to enter information in Line Item screen. Make changes to his email. 

11. Discuss with NCDIT numbers to port for VoIP. Received contact information for person  
that handles porting and can give me detailed steps. 

12. Troubleshoot Connie Barnes desktop phone. Replaced phone line from phone to wall jack. 
13. Submit request to NCDIT to disconnect and remove from billing Veterans phone line  

793-3197. Email Jamie to check invoice to verify removal. Check NCDIT portal to verify. 
14. Anna received award letter for grant from 911 Board. Curtis wrote Letter of Acceptance  

and emailed to 911 Board. Work with Anna and explain next steps. 
15. Attend 911 site visit with Angie Turbeville. Discussed multiple topics. 
16. Research information on space with SharePoint and find email concerning airport internet  

for Curtis. 
17. Complete spreadsheet for phone lines to port for VoIP. 
18. Review PrintFil information with Sherri so she can call PrintFil reseller to purchase license.  

Issue resolved. 
19. Complete additional items for Laurie Zoll – order laptop power cord, add Laurie  

permissions to CoManagerShare, set up user account and permissions in Edmunds. 
20. Research email received from BrightSpeed concerning request for Board of Elections –  

there was no request. Cancelled request. 
21. Attend NCDIT Local Government Town Hall 09/21. 
22. Review and verify CopyPro invoice and submit to Finance. 



 

23. Contact Dell for quotes for longer power cords for 911 CAD monitors. Issue with cords 
hanging up on adjustable table. Place order. EAD 09/29. 

24. Troubleshoot issue with Jail printer. Resolved. 
25. Attend Departmental meeting. 
26. Attend County Manager group meeting. 
27. Attend Commissioners meeting. 
28. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
29. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
30. Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager 
31. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
 
Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 
 

September here at the Center has been a busy for admin staff and me. We began the 
month taking the seniors on their 2nd trip to spend the USDA Farmer’s Market vouchers given to 
them via the Albemarle Commission. They did not spend the full $50 in Edenton, so we took 
them to Pitt Co. where there is more selection.  

 
After the Labor Day closing, we had regularly scheduled programming and Maria and 

myself both taught our own craft programs for the month. My craft class painted wooden 
pumpkins for door hangers, then two days later the group painted a pre-drawn canvas with 
Maria, Activities Coordinator.  

 
After finding out about travel funds through DSS, staff have been actively trying to figure 

out how to spend the unexpected funds during the allotted time period. 
 
As far as certification is concerned, I attended a Suicide ASSIST training in Wake Forest. 

This training focused on seeing the signs and intervening when someone is exhibiting signs, they 
may be contemplating suicide. During COVID, suicide rates skyrocketed and has not really 
come down, and with our seniors as a more isolated age group it was a wonderful training 
provided by the Aging Services of NCDHHS. 

 
Martha and Maria both began the Serv-Safe training program through the Cooperative 

Extension this month and they are going to become certified in October. This makes me feel 
better because of the Meals for home delivered as well as when we do Center-Sponsored food 
events.  

 
Staff is closing out September preparing for our Chili Cook-Off (Thursday, September 

26, 2023 @ 11:30). We believe it will be a wonderful event and can’t wait to inform the Board of 
how it goes next month! 
 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 



 

• Lighting at the airport caused runway lights to stop working. Have repaired runway 
lights. 

• Continue repairing ground height around duct units. 
• Filling in runway/taxiway washouts from rainfalls, lots more this last rainfall! 
• Testing water outlets each day for water quality. 
• Mowing lots of grass. 
• Repairing drainage problem areas. 

 
Future Projects:   

• Replace Av/gas hose and jet fuel hose.                                                  
• Clean debris around perimeter of airport.                                                   
• Clean logging road overgrowth.                                                                                                                                                 
• Replace fuel pump nightlight at fueling station, about 20’ tall.                                                        
• Runway: airport. Will have to remove trees north end and south end of runway RPZ zone 

to meet FAA safety standards. Remove rocks/stones around taxiway to improve mowing 
and save wear and tear on airport equipment.                                                              

• Repair Beacon                                                                                                         
• Repair/replace PAPI lights (precision approach path indicator)        
• Repair/replace REIL (runway end identifier lights)                             
• And other items that are deemed necessary not on this list.                                

 
Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Unfinished Business: 

• We are in the process of converting lights to LED.  Started at DSS. 
• Scheduling with 911/IT Directors to do repairs in their server room (floor/wall). 

 
Maintenance: 

• We have completed 59 work orders. 
• The windows for the Board of Elections building have been installed. 
• The tinting of the doors and window at the Courthouse entrance has been completed. 

 
Upcoming Projects: 

• Work on the leaks on the shop building. 
• Remodel the empty space in the Courthouse (Old Maintenance office). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                       
Current Year Tax 1,292,918.24$    1,841,875.98$    327,668.62$      3,462,462.84$                      
Current Yr Discount (25,476.78)$        (21,654.99)$        (526.19)$             (47,657.96)$                          
Current Year Penalty 787.65$               2,771.65$            1,056.76$           4,616.06$                             
Current Year Interest -$                      -$                     -$                                       

Watershed Tax Current Yr 15,097.27$          21,172.24$          3,795.04$           40,064.55$                           
Watershed Discount (302.62)$              (250.79)$              (5.81)$                 (559.22)$                               
Watershed Penalty 9.16$                    31.98$                 12.61$                53.75$                                   
Watershed Interest -$                      -$                     -$                                       
Prior Year Tax 18,352.43$          36,799.48$          14,030.87$         69,182.78$                           
Prior Year Penalty 68.78$                  417.40$               11.30$                497.48$                                 
Prior Year Interest 2,722.59$            9,883.52$            1,948.27$           14,554.38$                           
Prior Year Watershed 149.83$               462.06$               82.27$                694.16$                                 
Prior Year WS Penalty 0.71$                    4.84$                    0.13$                   5.68$                                     
Prior Year WS Interest 170.91$               532.50$               138.46$              841.87$                                 
Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                                       
Prepayments 500.95$               5,956.02$            2,762.60$           9,219.57$                             

TOTAL 1,304,999.12$    1,898,001.89$    350,974.93$      -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                -$  3,553,975.94$                      

Initiated 0
Amount -$                                       
Satisfied/Cancelled 0
Amount -$                                       

*

87966.77 85,307.73$          77,214.79$         162,522.52$                         

 -$                                       
Billed Current Yr 1,315,210.00$    1,315,210.00$                      
Collected All Years 273,626.13$        265,537.20$       72,876.02$         612,039.35$                         
Bad Checks -$                      -$                     -$                                       

TOTAL 273,626.13$        265,537.20$       72,876.02$         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                -$  612,039.35$                         

Tax and Tag Collections
Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX
FY23-24

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments



Billed Current Yr 6,583.70$            -$                      -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                -$                                       
Collected Current Yr 1,055.97$            1,825.37$            170.37$              -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                3,051.71$                             
TOTAL 1,055.97$            1,825.37$            170.37$              -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                3,051.71$                             

Collected Current Yr 13,576.76$          27,943.80$          16,688.19$         58,208.75$                           

Creswell Levy 7,708.14$            19,091.33$          3,106.76$           29,906.23$                           

1,600,966.12$    2,297,707.32$    521,031.06$      -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                -$  4,419,704.50$                     

Drainage Fees -    Eddie 

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments TOTAL



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 1399
Unduplicated Attendees 69 79 148
New Particpants 0 5 5
Center-Sponsored Events 367 213 580
Special Events 99 63 162
Caregiver's Support Groups 5 0 5
Exercise Room 36 40 76
Fitness Workout 13 15 28
Yoga 3 3 6
Chair Exercise 65 64 129
Line Dance 45 49 94
Crafts With Sandra Lee 15 20 35
Drop-in Activities 10 35 45
Pickle Ball 24 10 34
Sewing with Geraldine 19 17 36
Computer Wi-fi 5 11 16

SENIOR CENTER
FY23-24



YTD Total
MEAL DATA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Congregate Meals Served 0
Home-Delivered Meals Served 0
Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups 0

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA 344.00$  142.00$  331.00$   -$         -$         -$      -$         -$         -$  -$  -$  -$  817.00$      
Congregate Meals 46.00$    52.00$     69.00$     167.00$      
Home-Delivered Meals 140.00$  90.00$     262.00$   492.00$      
Activity Fees 155.00$  155.00$      
Donations 3.00$       3.00$          

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

Meals Served (FY23-24)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

47%

13%
0%

6%

2%0%

10%

8%

3%
4%

3% 3%1%

Senior Center Activities (FY23-24) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Groups

Exercise Room

Fitness Workout

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Line Dance

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Drop-in Activities

Pickle Ball

Sewing with Geraldine

Computer Wi-fi



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

55 45 53 51 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 204 204
Male 29 26 33 30 118
Female 11 5 9 5 30
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 1 0 0 0 1
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 1
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 1 1 1 1 4
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0

13 13 10 15 51 51
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0US PRISON TRANSPORT 

148

0

1

0

0

0

4

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

SMCP

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY23-24

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

97%

0%1%0%0%0%2%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY23-24)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

WC Dispatched 164 158 141 463
WC Transported 109 124 113 346
WC Refusals 55 34 28 117

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 0 1 3 4
SNF to Doctors 112 146 137 395
Hospital Discharges 7 8 8 23
EMS Back Up 0 5 3 8

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

TC Dispatched 49 51 63 163
TC Transported 31 41 54 126
TC Refusals 18 10 9 37

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 0 0 0
HC Transported 0 0 0 0
HC Refusals 0 0 0 0

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY23-24

Washington County

Tyrrell County

37%

28%

9%

13%

10%
3%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY23-24
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,495.00 3,800.46$      3,663.00$   $10,958.46
Zoning 150.00$    75.00$         275.00$       $500.00

Reinspect 300.00$    75.00$         150.00$       $525.00
SWUF $0.00 -$             406.25$       $406.25

HO Recovery 
Fee $0.00 20.00$         10.00$         $30.00

Total $3,945.00 $3,970.46 $4,504.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,419.71

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY23-24

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$500.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$2,000.00

$2,500.00

$3,000.00

$3,500.00

$4,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY23-24) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

88%

4%
4% 4%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning
Reinspect SWUF
HO Recovery Fee



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS
Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 1045 973 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2018

Law Enforcement 786 765 1551
Animal Control 78 39 117

EMS 181 169 350
Reported Incidents 28 28

Total Arrests 5 0 2 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12
Misdemeanor Arrests 2 1 2 5

Felony Arrests 3 1 3 7
Total Papers Served 40 0 50 59 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 149
Criminal Papers Served 7 15 6 28

Civil Papers Served 33 35 53 121
Total Papers Outstanding 31 0 46 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 89
Criminal Papers Outstanding 16 32 6 54

Civil Papers Outstanding 15 14 6 35
Gun Permits Issued  N/A 0
Conceals Pending  N/A 7 7

Concealed Permits Issued  N/A 16 10 26

SHERRIFF
FY23-24



77%

6%

17%

Dispatched Calls (FY23-24)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

YTD TOTALS

28

5 7

28

121

54

35

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY23-2)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 22-23  (in 
million gallons)

7707 7855 8266 6766 7766 7706 6657 6814 7014 6519 7560 80,630

Water Billed  FY 23-24 (in 
million gallons)

8080 8930 7196 24,206

Base Charges 70,623$      71,143$    71,210$    212,976$        
Consumption Charges 52,884$      62,621$    43,524$    159,029$        
Reconnecton Charges 1,645$        1,505$      1,575$      4,725$            

 Number of Abatements 13 16 7 36                    

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 

1,161.50$  1,268$      1,814$      4,242.50$       

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

19.9 16.22 15.6 51.720

Number of Customers 2660 2680 2677 8,017
New taps 5 3 3 11
Water Billed to Roper 4,484.00$     4,484.00$   4,484.00$   13,452.00$             

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY23-24



0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison
 

Water Billed FY 22-23  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 23-24 (in million gallons)



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 44.54 44.29 89.90 178.73
Inert Debris 41.06 31.47 1.99 74.52
Scrap Metal 1.06 2.13 1.24 4.43
C&D 96.28 84.36 29.31 209.95
Tires 12 4.59 1.79 18.38

LANDFILL  (in tons)
FY 23-24

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



DRAFT  

                       
 

August 7, 2023 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
August 7, 2023, at 6:00 PM in person in the Media Center of the Washington County Early 
College High School.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John 
C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County 
Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy 
Dixon. 
 

Chair Walker called the meeting to order. Chair Walker gave the invocation and 
Commissioner Phelps led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  None. 
 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the Agenda for tonight’s meeting 

as corrected.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 

a) Approval of Minutes of June 5, 2023 
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents  
c) Updated Pay Tables Chart Effective 7/16/23 
d) Position Description: Assistant County Manager, Deputy Tax Administrator 

& Land Records Coordinator Positions 
e) Lease of 205 East Main St. to NC Dept. of Adult Correction for Probation 

Offices 
f) RESO 2023-020 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $970,200 
g) RESO 2023-021 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $5,472,000 
h) Order for Collection of Ad Valorem Taxes 
i) Approval of Retention Schedule 
j) Approval of 2023 Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement with Emergency 

Management 
 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  

Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
  
 PUBLIC FORUM:  Ms. Rebecca Liverman, Cooperative Extension Director, 128 E. Water 
Street, introduced Heather Rogers, the 4-H student going to NCACC Youth Voice at NACC 
Conference.  Washington County will also be sending two additional delegates. 
 
 DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION UPDATE:  PLANNING/INSPECITONS 
DEPARTMENT:   Mr. Allen Liverman, Planning/Safety Director gave the following 
presentation to the Board. 
 



DRAFT  

  
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
Commissioner Keyes said the fire insurance program is voluntary and is glad to see Mr. 

Pittman continuing with the program.  
 
Commissioner Spruill thanked Mr. Pittman for his presentation and the work he does. 
 
QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING: Mr. Pittman spoke to the Commissioners about a Special 

Use Permit that was filed in their office.  It has been before the Planning Board and by statute 
must now come to the Board of Adjustment and have a Quasi-Judicial public hearing. 

 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to open the public hearing.  Commissioner 

Keyes seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Potter went over the following procedures for holding a quasi-judicial hearing. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

For Section IV,  Conflicts, Mr. Potter asked if any of the Commissioners had a conflict of 
interest.  Commissioner Keyes stated that she had heard this previously in the Planning Board 
meeting.  There were no conflicts amongst the Commissioners. 
 
For Section V, Party Identification/Witnesses, Mr. Potter asked the parties to identify themselves 
and then Ms. Bennett swore them in: 

a. Tillman Infrustructure, LLC (the Applicant) 
i. Mark Leubier, vendor for Tillman Infrastructure, LLC 

b. Allen Pittman, Director, Washington County Planning & Inspections 
 

Commissioner Johnson asked Mr. Leubier what his interest in this project is.  Mr. Leubier 
said he works for the anchor tenant (Verizon).  Commissioner Johnson asked if they have been 
approached by HarvestBeam. They own the airspace. Mr. Leubier said no he has not, but he is 
the vendor for Tillman.  
 

Commissioner Spruill asked were proper notifications done.  Mr. Pittman said yes, and he 
listed where posted and mailed and that information is in their package. 

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to adjourn the Public Hearing.  Commissioner 

Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the Special Use Permit (with no 
conditions) submitted by Tillman Infrastructure, LLC. Commissioner Keyes  seconded.  
Motion carried unanimously.   

 
TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT IN SETTLEMENT: 
 
Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator, spoke to the Board and gave them her Settlement 

Report below. 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 
Ms. Wilkins noted that the tax bills were sent out before the end of July for discounts. 
 
Commissioner Johnson asked about the situation with the hospital suit. Ms. Wilkins said 

she had not heard anything. She also noted that they have not set up an appeal date. 
 
Commissioner Spruill said on the tax page on the website there is a space for comments.  

Who monitors it for comments?  Ms. Wilkins said she does and that she checks it every day. 
 
 



DRAFT  

 Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the Tax Settlement Report.  
Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 LATE APPLICATION FOR DISABLED VETERANS EXEMPTION:  Ms. Wilkins, 
 Tax Administrator stated the following information below.  
 

Regarding the late application for the disabled veteran’s exemption, North Carolina 
General Statute 105-282.1(a1) requires that the Board of County Commissioners be responsible 
for approving a late application, if there is a showing of good cause why the application was filed 
after the deadline. James Anthony Respass submitted his application on July 28, 2023. He was 
approved for the veterans’ disability on October 3, 2022, but it took until July 26th, 2023, to get 
the Certification for Disabled Veteran’s form signed by a representative of the NCDMVA. Ms. 
Wilkins said she recommends this application be approved. 

 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the Late Application for Disabled 
Veterans Exemption.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
  
 BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   
 
 WASHINGTON COUNTY JURY COMMISSION 
 
The Washington County Jury Commission had requested that the Board of Commissioners re-
appoint Ms. Syble Spruill to the Washington County Jury Commission. 
 
Ms. Spruill has agreed to serve if re-appointed. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the re-appointment of Ms.  Syble Spruill to 
the Washington County Jury Commission.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ Agenda Package. 

 



DRAFT  

\\ 



DRAFT  

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 
 



DRAFT  

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

 
 
Commissioner Keyes thanked Ms. Dixon for all the work she does on her documentation. 
 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 

as presented.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   
 

Commissioner Johnson thanked the Board for the help they have provided while she has 
been tending to the business of the NCACC. It has been thrilling and rough. Her term is coming 
to an end after 8/26. She is glad the Commissioners are attending the “passing of the gavel” at 
the NCACC banquet. She noted that that she spoke of Washington County at every meeting she 
attended. She also stated that there will be broadband folks at a reception at the conference.  She 
told the Commissioners they will be able to speak to those folks about getting broadband 
throughout Washington County. 

 
 Commissioner Phelps said thank you to the staff for all they do. 
 

Commissioner Keyes attended training in Hickory.  She is also working on assisting the 
residents of the County. 
 



DRAFT  

Commissioner Spruill said he attended the Albemarle RC&D in June.  They are 
reorganizing to have just one (1) representative per County.  He also stated that he has been 
staying on top of the work at the new school. 

 
The following items were discussed: 
 

a) NCACC Voting Delegate Designation 
 Commissioner Spruill nominated Commissioner Phelps as the County’s 
NCACC Voting Delegate at the upcoming annual NCACC conference.  Commissioner 
Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

b) ABC 2023-2024 Proposed Annual Operating Budget –this item was in the package 
for information only.  No action needed. 

 
c) Agenda for Joint Meeting with the Plymouth Town Council 

 Mr. Potter said there has been a proposed meeting between the Plymouth Town 
Council and the Board of Commissioners. Mr. Potter asked what the Commissioners would 
like to have on that agenda. Commissioner Keyes said she would like to see the three (3) 
municipalities working together--not to be in conflict and improve the quality of life in the 
county.  Also, the towns and the county need to clean up conflicting ordinances.  
Commissioner Spruill said the Town should work with them on the Bear Festival.  He would 
just like to see both working together and having an open dialogue.  Mr. Potter said asked if  
they knew of any specific issues.  It would help staff in creating an agenda.  Commissioner 
Johnson spoke about obtaining a grant that would bring in a certain type of person that 
would look for grants for County and Town--so we would all be working toward the same 
thing. Chair Walker said one item should be about needs and concerns and things both the 
County and Town are doing well. 
 

d) Discussion:  Legislation on Allowance of Heavier Trucks 
 The Board did not want to take a stand on this at the present time.  Mr. Potter said 
he would be on the lookout for any resolutions on this and report back to the Board. 
 

e) Discussion:  ¼ cent Sales Tax Referendum 
   The consensus of the Board is to move forward with putting this on the March 
primary.  This is the third time we have tried it.  The staff and Board will work hard 
at educating our residents on this item. 

 
 Mr. Potter said we have some new faces. Mr. Cameron Birtcher and Mr. Braxton 
Kilby have left us. Mr. Richard Livingston is leaving next Tuesday.  Ms. Debbie Kneiper 
has been hired as the new County Manager Office Assistant while Ms. Renee’ Collier takes 
over as Senior Center Direction. Ms. Asia Melton will be the new LFNC fellow.  We expect 
a new person to join us on August 16 as the Grants and Procurement Director. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and  §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  Commissioner 
Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Back in Open Session, Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve a 5%  salary increase 
for the County Manager along with a $275/month travel stipend. This would increase his salary 



DRAFT  

from $110,000 to $118,800, effective July 16, 2023.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  
   
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve with ¼ cent sales tax increase and for staff 
to bring a resolution to the September meeting to have this put on the March primary ballot.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

With no further business to discuss, Commissioner Phelps made a motion to adjourn.  
Commissioner Spruill seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
             Julius Walker, Jr.          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

          Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 



  DRAFT 

 

                       

 

August 28, 2023 

 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in Special Called Joint meeting 

with the Plymouth Town Council on Monday, August 28, 2023, at 6:00 PM in the Washington 

County Cooperative Extension Conference Room, 128 E. Water Street, Plymouth, NC.  

Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius 

Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, 

Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 

 

 Attendees for the Plymouth Town Council:  Mayor Brian Roth, Councilmen/women: 

Deborah Spencer, Gregory Boston, Mary Ann Byers, John Tharps, Sr., and Kim Williams.  Also 

in attendance was Town Manager Joanne Floyd.  Councilman Danny Wobbleton was not in 

attendance. 

 

Chair Walker called the Board of Commissioners’ meeting to order and welcomed all 

who were in attendance.  He then asked the Commissioners to introduce themselves. 

 

Mayor Roth called the Plymouth Town Council meeting to order and asked the Town 

Council Members to introduce themselves. 

 

Item 1 Items for Discussion 

a) Housing:  Commissioner Keyes stated we need more housing assistance. Many times, 

citizens are not aware of what is available to them. Councilwoman Spencer stated that the Town 

has been busy demolishing several houses. 

 

Mayor Roth asked County Manager Potter if Washington County had an increase in 

population last year.  County Manager Potter said yes—7 people.  Population that has been lost 

over the years due to attrition is being replaced by a younger generation. 

 

Town Manager Floyd stated the Town has several properties that were foreclosed on. 

They would like to get folks back into their homes and back on the tax books.  There are 

programs that help with this. 

 

 County Manager Potter said the County has predominantly been able to push the URP and SFR 

program grants through NCHFA.  Two years ago, the County partnered with the Albemarle Commission 

to take this over for us. We can help get info to the residents regarding this. Councilman Boston asked 

how we get the word out about this. County Manager Potter stated information is put in the Beacon, on 

social media, posted flyers in offices and though the ministerial association.  Councilwoman Williams 

suggested a County newsletter be send to the residents with this information. Town Manager Floyd 

recommended putting info in the water bills. Councilman Boston said they had a town hall meeting for 

citizens. He wants to have a town hall meeting for all towns and the county.  Chair Walker stated that 

the County is planning to meet with the Town of Roper and Town of Creswell.  Mayor Roth said we 

need to get more folks to come into the area.  He has also talked to the Housing Authorities. 

Councilwoman Spencer said she feels that whatever happens needs to keep going through generational 

boards—not stopping because the Board/Council changes. 

 



  DRAFT 

 

b) Cleaning Up of Abandoned Buildings:   

 

 Commissioner Spruill said the County has a certain amount of money they can use to take 

down abandoned buildings.  There are quite a few on Highway 64 that need to be addressed.  He feels 

the County/Town can do a better job of cleaning things up.  Commissioner Keyes said we have all got to 

sell the County/Town to its people. People want to feel included.  We have to work together. 

Commissioner Phelps said he is on the TTA, and next year’s Bear Festival is the NATIONAL Bear 

Festival, and we are expecting a large crowd. Councilwoman Spencer said she knows the Town has 

buildings that are falling down and need to get their things in order.  Mayor Roth said the firetrucks next 

door will be moved to Hwy 64 and that area will be made part of the Harbor Town Vision. Rep. 

Goodwin put in for $10M for waterfront improvements for all towns involved and we will get $2M for 

redoing the police parking lot and redoing the old firehouse building. Mayor Roth also said that Mr. Lou 

Manring has purchased the block by the Bear Towne Market to refurbish the three buildings for 

businesses to move in.  Also, the gashouse is going to be bulldozed and rebuilt and there is a lot of new 

construction to come. Councilman Tharps said he is trying to talk to the owners/heirs of several of the 

rundown houses in town. The consensus of both boards was that more funds need to be allocated to 

demolishing rundown houses and buildings.  Town Manager Floyd mentioned there needs to be more 

lighting on the ends of the towns and the county.  County Manager Potter said there are resources to help 

with heir property:  addressing it in wills is one example.  Mayor Roth said the general cost for tearing 

down a house is $3-5K or even $10K-20K for a building. 

 

c) Recreation 

  

   Councilwoman Williams stated that physical health is as important as mental health and there 

are no good places for our citizens to go except the Senior Center. She asked what is going to happen to 

the Washington County High School building after the new school is built. County Manager Potter said 

he would like to demolish the old part of the building and bring in the Senior Center, Health 

Department, Riverlight Transit and possibly other entities and move operations from Washington Street 

to the old high school.  The athletic fields are in great shape. It would be a 3–5-year project. Councilman 

Boston liked that idea.  He said we need to have something open in the evening.  Basketball and tennis 

courts were also discussed. Mayor Roth said they need to re-pave some of the existing courts to be 

allowed to be used now.  Councilman Boston said the citizens need to see something being done and 

need to get going on project. Discussion ensued about the PARTF grant and the matching dollars that 

hinder us from getting this grant. 

 

d) Safety in our Community 

 

 Councilwoman Byers said they have been meeting to discuss groups of children (gangs) that 

do break-is, throwing rocks and defacing property.  We need to start reaching kids at earlier ages. There 

is a local program to help kids. She said she helped clean up trash in our community last weekend and 

needs more help doing this. Town Manager Floyd said the Town’s Street Department is working on 

installing lighting (from a grant they received), hoping that it will help keep crime down. County 

Manager Potter said the Sherrif’s Department is extremely understaffed.  The County did a salary 

adjustment this year, but we are basically just keeping up.  Commissioner Keyes wanted to thank the 

Plymouth Police Department for a program they run for the kids. Discussion ensued. 

 

 

 



  DRAFT 

 

e) Economic Development  

Councilwoman Spencer asked if the Couty has an Economic Developer.  County Manager 

Potter indicated that he was it. Councilwoman Spencer asked if he could use some help.  

County Manager Potter said “of course”, however a full-time ED would not have enough to 

do and not justify the salary for that position.  He stated that several buildings are finally 

inhabited.  Site Development through Golden Leaf is working on economic development for 

the county.  The new school will have an impact on economic development. The County is 

constantly working to find grants to help with economic development (i.e., Agape, 

Motorsports). County Manager Potter said the County has embraced tourism as its primary 

economic development.  Discussion ensued. 

 

Commissioner Johnson stated that the Albemarle Commission has received substantial 

funding for Tier 1 counties.  The Albemarle Commission is going to send an ED to Plymouth 

to assist them.  Commissioner Phelps talked about the lack of gas stations in Creswell.  They 

need help in getting one there.  Mayor Roth said he is close to announcing something coming 

to Plymouth. 

 

f)   Intergovernmental Cooperation Opportunities 

 

Commissioner Keyes said it sounds like we are already working on this item.  We all benefit 

from working together.  Mayor Roth mentioned having dinners with the council/board 

members to get to know each other.  Commissioner Walker said he would like to meet with 

the other two municipalities before planning a dinner meeting.  Councilwoman Williams said 

this meeting has been great, but now she needs to see things happen.   

 

Commissioner Phelps said that there is program statewide to light up the state GREEN 

(November 6-12, 2023) by putting green light bulbs in all county buildings to show support 

for veterans returning to civilian life. 

 

County Manager Potter said he has been asked to bring up finding a way to work together on 

the pump station that is to support the new school.  What can the County do to keep it on the 

Town’s agenda?  Mayor Roth said they are trying for another grant. County Manager Potter 

said that the County would be glad to write a strong letter of support. 

 

Item 2  Public Forum 

  County Manager Office Assistant Kneiper stated that Mr. George Swain was the only person 

signed up for the Public Forum, but he had to leave.  He did leave some handouts with County Clerk 

Bennett to distribute to the Board/Council. After receiving the handouts, Chair Walker and Mayor Roth 

said the Board/Council will address these questions at a later date. 

 

 Chair Walker said he felt this meeting was productive, but citizens want to see them “walk the 

talk.”  Commissioner Keyes agreed with Chair Walker that this is a great start.  He thanked everyone for 

being here tonight and was willing to listen.  Commissioner Spruill agreed with Commissioner Keyes. 

 

 Commissioner Johnson said she may be speaking too soon, but there are two pilot programs in 

the works, and she will report on them when she can. 

 



  DRAFT 

 

 Councilwoman Spencer stated that we all similar opportunities and should work better on them 

together. 

 

 Councilwoman Byers said this has been a productive meeting and that Creswell and Roper have 

needs too. 

 

 Councilman Tharps said he appreciated everyone attending the meeting. 

 

 Councilman Williams said she liked hearing ideas from the County and know things are coming 

down the road.  She also appreciated everyone coming to the meeting. 

 

 Councilman Boston stated, “together we stand, divided we fall”.  He was excited to be here and 

thanked everyone for their ideas. 

 

 Town Manager Floyd thanked everyone for coming and sharing their ideas. 

 

 Mayor Roth said he looks forward to having dinner together and is optimistic for the future. 

 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to adjourn the Board of Commissioners’ meeting. 

Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Roth made a motion to adjourn the Town of Plymouth’s Council meeting. 

Councilwoman Byers seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

______________________________  _____________________________ 

             Julius Walker, Jr.          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

          Chair              Clerk to the Board 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT  

 

 
                       
 

September 5, 2023 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
September 5, 2023, at 6:00 PM in person in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John C. 
Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney 
Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 

Chair Walker called the meeting to order. Commissioner Keyes gave the invocation and 
Mr. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  None. 
 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Agenda for tonight’s meeting.  

Commissioner Spruill seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 

a) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents  
b) RESO 2023-022 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $5,472,000 
c) RESO 2023-023 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory $970,200 
d) RESO 2023-024 Emergency Preparedness Month 2023 
e) RESO 2023-025 Mackey’s History Marker 
f) Washington County Southern Albemarle Association Delegates 

 
Commissioner Spruill said he appreciated the Board having the Emergency 
Preparedness Resolution on the agenda. 

 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  

Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
  
 PUBLIC FORUM:   Ms. Rebecca Liverman, Cooperative Extension Director. introduced the 
County’s new 4-H agent—Ms. Ginny Mason. She is originally from Washington County. Her dad was 
the minister at Zion’s Chapel. She noted that she had a teaching background.  
 
 EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER: Chair Walker recognized Ms. Darlene Fikes, IT 
Director, as Employee of the Quarter for September 2023.   
 
Chair Walker stated that this employee was hired on May 2, 1979, as the IT Systems Operations 
Trainee which evolved into the IT Director.  (Department of ONE!) 
 
During the last quarter, the Tax Office had their fiscal year-end closeout and new fiscal year 
setup.  During this same time frame, the County lost their programmer for the Tax Collection 
software---he died on July 1st.  During the new fiscal year setup, the Tax Office encountered 
several issues that the programmer would have handled. The IT Director knew what had to be 



DRAFT  

 

done – she researched the programming that was in place, studied the layouts of the programs 
that were causing issues and was able to fix the problems.  She could have made excuses, but she 
didn’t, she took control of the situations that were encountered and handled them.  She did this 
while attending to other responsibilities that she had.  Other counties that use the same tax 
collection software we do said they do not have someone on staff that can address any issues and 
their IT personnel do not have training in the programs.  She is a valuable asset to Washington 
County, and she deserves the recognition of Employee of the Quarter.   All present joined Chair 
Walker in congratulating Ms. Darlene Fikes! 
 

BRIEF REPORT FROM CONGRESSMAN DAVIS’ OFFICE TO WASHINGTON 
COUNTY:  Mr. Chris Hardee, representing Congressman Davis’s Office, gave the following 
presentation regarding District 1. 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
OPIOID SPENDING UPDATE:  Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA reiterated the following 

information to the Commissioners (from the agenda package)  
 



DRAFT  

 

Guidance on technical compliance with the Opioid Settlement MOA and related 
accounting/budgeting compliance has recently been updated by the Department of Justice, UNC 
School of Government, and LGC.   

 
Whereas previously it was considered advisable to budget these funds utilizing a separate 

Grant Project Ordinance, that practice is no longer considered in compliance with the recently 
updated guidance.  Therefore, until any further legislative changes or guidance revisions, all 
settlement funds must now be appropriated via BOTH an authorizing Board Resolution, AND 
budgeted and accounted for as part of the annual budget ordinance.    

 
All settlement funds will still be maintained separately in a special revenue fund along 

with all interest generated from such funds which remains subject to the same restrictions as the 
funds themselves. 

   
The DOJ and the LGC have also provided assurances that any technical auditing issues 

that are cited in future audits as a result of using a Grant Project Ordinance will not be 
considered material.  It is still necessary to ratify the prior year’s allocation of $5,000 to the Drug 
Recovery Court (which was previously authorized by the now non-compliant use of a Grant 
Project Ordinance in order to help resolve potential auditing issues that may otherwise arise as a 
result of this updated guidance.   

 
The attached Resolution accomplishes three distinct goals as follows: 

 
1. It authorizes the $5,000 Drug Recovery Court appropriation for the current fiscal year. 
2. It ratifies the $5,000 Drug Recovery Court appropriation for the prior fiscal year 

(previously authorized by a now non-compliant Grant Project Ordinance) 
3. It extends the period to complete the expenditure of the previously authorized/allocated 

$23,6_ from 12/31/23 to 6/30/24 to make it consistent with the current fiscal year.  
 

This item also gives the County Board, and any participating municipalities an opportunity to 
learn about and ask questions or provide input on the current and future appropriations of the 
Opioid Settlement Funds. 
 

An enormous amount of additional information and guidance is available at: 
https://www.ncacc.org/services-for-counties/disaster-preparedness-and-recovery/opioid-
litigation-settlement/ 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-026 
TO DIRECT THE EXPENDITURE OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS 

 
WHEREAS Washington County has joined national settlement agreements with 

companies engaged in the manufacturing, distribution, and dispensing of opioids. 
 

WHEREAS the allocation, use, and reporting of funds stemming from these national 
settlement agreements and bankruptcy resolutions (“Opioid Settlement Funds”) are governed by 
the Memorandum of Agreement Between the State of North Carolina and Local Governments on 
Proceeds Relating to the Settlement of Opioid Litigation (“MOA”) and the Supplemental 
Agreement for Additional Funds from Additional Settlements of Opioid Litigation (“SAAF”); 

https://www.ncacc.org/services-for-counties/disaster-preparedness-and-recovery/opioid-litigation-settlement/
https://www.ncacc.org/services-for-counties/disaster-preparedness-and-recovery/opioid-litigation-settlement/


DRAFT  

 

 
WHEREAS Washington County has received Opioid Settlement Funds pursuant to these 

national settlement agreements and deposited the Opioid Settlement Funds in a separate special 
revenue fund as required by section D of the MOA; 
 

WHEREAS section E.6 of the MOA states that, before spending opioid settlement funds, 
the local government’s governing body must adopt a resolution that:  

(i) indicates that it is an authorization for expenditure of opioid settlement funds; and,  
(ii) states the specific strategy or strategies the county or municipality intends to fund 

pursuant to Option A or Option B, using the item letter and/or number in Exhibit 
A or Exhibit B to identify each funded strategy; and,  

(iii) states the amount dedicated to each strategy for a specific period of time. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, in alignment with the NC MOA and SAAF, 
Washington County authorizes the expenditure of opioid settlement funds as follows: 
 
1. First strategy authorized: 

a. Name of strategy: Criminal Justice Diversion Programs 
b. Strategy is included in Exhibit A 
c. Item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or Exhibit B to the MOA: 10 
d. Amounted authorized for this strategy: $5,000.00 
e. Period of time during which expenditure may take place:  

Start date July 1, 2023 through End date June 30, 2024 
f. Description of the program, project, or activity: County contribution/match to help 

fund the Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department Grant Funded Drug 
Recovery Court Program 

g. Provider: Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department 
 
 

2. Second strategy authorized: 
a. Name of strategy: Criminal Justice Diversion Programs 
b. Strategy is included in Exhibit A 
c. Item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or Exhibit B to the MOA: 10 
d. Amounted authorized for this strategy: $5,000.00 
e. Period of time during which expenditure may take place:  

Start date July 1, 2022 through End date June 30, 2023* 
*The expenditure of this sum during the prior fiscal year/period stated above (as 
previously authorized in a Project Grant Ordinance adopted on or about June 6, 
2022) is hereby re-approved and ratified by the Board to the extent required by 
law to comply with recently issued DOJ/LGC Guidance concerning the use of 
Project Grant Ordinances to account for and expend opioid settlement funds. 

 
f. Description of the program, project, or activity: County contribution/match to help 

fund the Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department Grant Funded Drug 
Recovery Court Program 

g. Provider: Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department 
 

3. Third authorized strategy 



DRAFT  

 

a. Name of strategy: Naloxone Distribution/Syringe Service Program 
b. Strategy is included in Exhibit A 
c. Item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or Exhibit B to the MOA: 7 & 9 
d. Amounted authorized for this strategy: $21,230.19 
e. Period of time during which expenditure may take place:  

Start date January 1, 2023 through End date June 30, 2024* 
 

*This strategy/appropriation was previously authorized by the Board via 
Resolution 2023-008.  This resolution shall be deemed to amend and extend the 
original period of time provided for completing this strategy from 12/31/23 to the 
later date stated above.  

 
f. Description of the program, project, or activity: County contribution/match to help 

fund the Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department “Hope Exchange” 
harm reduction program as outlined in a request letter to Washington County from 
Miranda Keel, Health Education Supervisor, dated 8/29/23 

g. Provider: Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department 
 

The total dollar amount of Opioid Settlement Funds appropriated across the above named and 
authorized strategies is $5,000.00 for FYE June 30, 2023; and $26,230.19 for FYE June 30, 
2024.   
 
Adopted this the 5th day of September, 2023. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker Jr., Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, NCMCC & MMC 
Clerk to the Board 
           
 
 

Mr. Wes Gray, MTW Health Department Director, gave the following presentation. 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 
 
Commissioner Spruill asked could the Narcan kits be made available to fire departments 

& educate them on the use of it and what to expect after they administer it to someone.  Mr. Gray 
said they could. People need that as much or more than CPR. 

 
Commissioner Keyes said she appreciated all they do. 
 



DRAFT  

 

Mr. Lance Swindell, EM Coordinator, asked have they seen any uptick in cases. Mr. 
Gray said it all depends on what is reported.  
 

Mr. Potter withdrew resolution in agenda package. He stated that there is new language 
has come out and the resolution will be re-done and brought back to Commissioners. 
 
 PUBLIC HEARING: RIVERLIGHT TRANSIT ADMIN GRANT APPLICATION:   
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to open the Public Hearing. Commissioner 
Phelps seconded; motion passed unanimously.  
 

Ms. Kim Blevins, DSS Riverlight Transit Supervisors told the Board that she was here to 
seek the Board’s approval with submitting the Admin grant application for Riverlight Transit. A 
public hearing is required.  The forms and the Admin Grant for FY25 were in their Agenda 
Package. (The documents referenced herein will be attached and become a part of these 
minutes.) DSS will not be doing the Capital Grant for FY25 as they have no other vehicles that 
have reached the threshold of 100,000 miles as of 06/30/2023.  
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to close the Public Hearing. Commissioner 
Keyes seconded; motion passed unanimously.  
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Admin Grant application and 
the Community Public Transportation Program resolution for FY25. Commissioner Phelps 
seconded; motion passed unanimously.  
 

Afterwards, Chair Walker asked Ms. Blevins how many buses Riverlight Transit had.  
Ms. Blevins replied there was a total of eight (8) buses in the fleet. 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING: Mr. Pittman, Planning/Inspections Director spoke to the 

Commissioners about the Special Use Permit his office received. The Planning Board has 
reviewed it and held a public hearing on it. By statute, it has to come before the Board of 
Adjustment in a Public Hearing. 

 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to open the public hearing.  Commissioner 

Keyes seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Potter, CM/CA went over instructions to Commissioners for this Quasi-Judicial 

Hearing. 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
For Section IV, Conflicts, Mr. Potter asked did any board members with conflicts of 

interest. Commissioner Keyes said she has heard the presentation previously at the Planning 
Board meeting.  There were no conflicts amongst the Commissioners. 

 
For Section V, Party Identification/Witnesses, Mr. Potter aske the parties to identify 

themselves and Ms. Bennett swore them in: 
a) TowerCom representatives: 

Mr. Frank Longest, attorney representing TowerCom 
Mr. Jonathan Yates, represent the owner 
Ms. Robin Clements, with attorney Longest 

 
b) Mr. Allen Pittman, Director, Planning  & Inspections 

Mr. Pittam spoke to the Commissioners regarding the information below that was in 
their package.   

 
 

 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 
 
 

 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 



DRAFT  

 

 



DRAFT  

 

 



DRAFT  

 

 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 



DRAFT  

 

 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 



DRAFT  

 

 



DRAFT  

 

                                              

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
Mr. Yates stated he would like to present a notebook with 10 tabs.  [This document will 

be incorporated herein by such reference to these minutes and will be located in the County 
Clerks office.] 
 

Mr. Yates said he enjoyed working with Mr. Pittman and Ms. Barnes in the 
Planning/Zoning Office.  He also said this is a great piece of property for this project to 
cover a section of the county that needs it 

 
Questions:  Commissioner Johnson said she had no questions but did have a comment 

about traveling up and down HWY 32 for 29 years and having cell service dropped repeatedly 
while on that stretch of road.  She is looking forward to this tower being put up. Commissioner 
Keyes said she understands the importance of first responders reliable cell service in that area. 

 
Commissioner  Spruill made a motion to approve the Special Use Permit for a new 

cell tower to be constructed by TowerCom at 10180 HWY 32 S in Plymouth.  
Commissioner  Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to adjourn the Public Hearing.  Commissioner 

Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 



DRAFT  

 

LOCAL OPTION ACTION SALES TAX REFERENDUM:  Mr. Potter went over the 
information below. 

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

Commissioner Keyes said this resolution should be approved to curtail tax increases and 
we all need to educate the public on the difference in this vs personal property tax. 
 



DRAFT  

 

Mr. Potter said he and Ms. Dixon will bring back a Budget Transfer for education on this. 
Commissioners Keyes and Phelps said they will try to educate their districts. Commissioner 
Spruill said he would also. 
 

Commissioner Phelps said it will be important to let folks know that not just the residents 
will be paying this sales tax. Anyone who passes through and buys something will be subject to 
paying this tax. 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve Resolution 2023 -026 Calling for a 
Special Advisory Referendum Concerning the Levy of a One-Quarter Percent Sales and 
Use Tax in Accordance with NCGS 105-537 to be held on March 5th, 2024.  Commissioner 
Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.   
 
 BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   
 
 ALBEMARLE COMMISSION AREA AGENCY ON AGING REGIONAL 
ADVISORY COUNCIL 
 
ALBEMARLE COMMISSION AREA AGENCY ON AGING REGIONAL ADVISORY 
COUNCIL (RAC) has requested that the Board of Commissioners re-appoint Ms. Gail Spiewak 
and appoint Ms. Renee Collier to the RAC. 
 
Both have agreed to serve if appointed/re-appointed. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes        made a motion to approve the appointment/re-appointment of 
Ms. Renee Collier and Ms. Gail Spiewak, respectively to the Albemarle Commission Area Agency 
on Aging Regioal Advisory Council (RAC). Commissioner CP seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ Agenda Package.  [This document will be incorporated 
herein by such reference to these minutes.] 

 
  Ms. Dixon said she needed to add one for $13 for the TTA FICA Tax (BT 2023-
182). 

 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve BT #2023-182 & 183 and BT 

#2024-015, #2024-016, #2024-17, #2024-18, #2024 -19, #2024-020, #2024-21 as presented.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   

 
Commissioner Spruill commented on the NCACC Annual Conference. He received lots 

of useful information. He stated he is glad we have Ms. Zoll on board now to assist the 
County with grants. Commissioner Spruill also noted that there were youths from 
Washington County at the NCACC Conference.  He thanked Commissioner Johnson for all 
she did while she was President of the NCACC.   



DRAFT  

 

Commissioner Keyes agreed with Commissioner Spruill on Commissioner Johnson’s role 
and her roles that Commission Johnson appointed her to for the NCACC.  She said she is 
glad to have partnerships within the county.  She thanked Mr. Mike Harris, a local farmer, 
who helped her unload food for the County. She also thanked Ms. Connie Barnes, Planning/ 
Safety/Inspections and EM Office for getting the messages out for her. 

 
Chair Walker piggybacked on kudos for Mr. Harris—he always helps.  The also thanked 

Commissioner Johnson for representing Washington County as the NCACC President.  He 
also noted that he took the ethics course again and learned more. 
 

Mr. Potter thanked Ms. Dixon for holding staff together while he was on vacation.  She is 
going on vacation in October! 
 

Mr. Potter gave an update on Skinnersville.  There is some surveying being done on the   
wood line and acres adjacent to facility.  He is working with Ms. Zoll on this on this also.  
She is also doing procurement.  The County is getting a new County Manager vehicle--an 
energy efficient sedan. 
 

Mr. Potter stated that they will need a need a 2nd meeting in September for a Change 
Order and grant disbursement for next draw request. Mr. Potter and WCS Supt. White are 
looking at each of them doing a resolution for their Boards, respectively, to have change 
order authority between WCS Supt. and the County Manager for smaller dollar items. 

 
 With no further business to discuss, Commissioner  Spruill  made a motion to adjourn.  
Commissioner  Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
             Julius Walker, Jr.          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

          Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

                       
 

September 26, 2023 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in Special Called Joint Meeting 
with the Washington County School Board on Monday, September 26, 2023, at 6:00 PM in the 
Washington County High School Early College Media Center, 115 Middle Street, Creswell, NC.  
Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius 
Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, 
Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 

Chair Walker called the Board of Commissioners’ meeting to order and welcomed 
everyone to the meeting.  Board of Education Chair Riddick called the Board of Education to 
order. 
 
Items for Discussion related to the new PK-12 School: 
 

1) Status of Project—Mr. Potter gave an overview of the project. He introduced Mr. Mike Konieczka. 
Project Executive with Metcon who was in attendance, and he gave the following presentation.  

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 

 
  
 Mr. Konieczka said they plan to be under roof by end of the year. 
 

2) Change Order(s) 
There are 4 change orders coming. They could not get the items in their Guaranteed Maximum 
Price (GMP).  This was covered in the presentation above.  Mr. Potter did note that the low voltage 
issue was addressed and put back into Phase I 
 



DRAFT  

 

Mr. Potter also noted that the State budget passed and is waiting for approval by the Governor. We 
were not granted a direct appropriation from the legislature.  They will open a 3rd round of funding. 

 
3) Admin Authority for Change Orders 

Mr. Potter reference the information below that he sent to the Commissioners in an email: 
 
- Increased Change Order Authority for Manager/Superintendent:   Dr. White and I 

intend to seek approval from our respective Boards of the authority to authorize 
future change orders up to $100,000 without needing to obtain prior board approval, 
provided the amount is budgeted for within the county’s allowances or contingency 
funds.  This is intended to help keep smaller change order matters from slowing the 
project to a grind in order to facilitate 2 board meetings prior to authorization.  Dr. 
White and I currently possess this authority up to $30,000 in general on all other 
projects, but felt that increasing this amount given the scope and scale of this project 
was advisable.  If approved, we will bring formal resolutions for this authority to our 
respective boards at their next board meetings. 

 
 Board of Education Member Cherry made a motion for Washington County to approve the 
current change orders. Commissioner Keyes seconded. All Board of Commissioners approved.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 The Board of Commissioners and the Board of Education agreed to do resolutions from each 
respective board authorizing Mr. Potter and Dr. White, respectively, to approve future change orders up to 
$100,000 without needing to obtain prior board approval, provided the amount is budgeted for within the 
county’s allowances or contingency funds. 

 
4) Funding agreement. Dr. White and Mr. Potter are working on it.  

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to adjourn the Board of Commissioners’ meeting. 

Commissioner Johnson seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
             Julius Walker, Jr.          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

          Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 



  DRAFT 

 

                       
 

October 2, 2023 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
October 2, 2023, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  
Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius 
Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, 
Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 

Chair Walker called the meeting to order. Mr. Lloyd Jones, Roper citizen, gave the 
invocation and Commissioner Phelps led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  Change # of resolution of 2023-026 to 2023-033. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  
 

a) RESO 2023-023 To Direct the Expenditure of Opioid Settlement Funds 
b) RESO 2023-027 Operation Green Light  
c) RESO 2023-028 Increase in PK-12 School Project Change Order Authority 
d) RESO 2023-029 Surplus Real Property—134 Daisy Lane 
e) RESO 2023-030 Surplus Real Property—90 Cumberland Drive 
f) RESO 2023-031 Surplus Real Property—203 West Avenue 
g) RESO 2023-032 Surplus Real Property—403 Hortontown Road 
h) SCADA System Bids 

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Commissioner 

Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
  
 PUBLIC FORUM:   Ms. Sandra Floyd, 30 Golden Lane, Roper, told the Board that the Animal 
Shelter director is injured and unable to perform his duties, so basically the shelter in closed. She 
thought there was something in the works for him to have an assistant. The Animal Shelter shouldn’t 
have to rely on volunteers. 
 
 DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION UPDATE:  EMS:  Ms. Jennifer O’Neal, EMS 
Director gave a presentation to the Board. [This presentation will be attached to these minutes 
and herein incorporated by such reference.] 
 

Commissioner Keyes said she has seen EMS in action.  She commended Ms. O’Neal and 
her Deputy Director Ward for going above and beyond. She said that all EMS staff go above and 
beyond. 

 
Commissioner Johnson thanked Ms. O’Neal for all EMS does. 

 
Commissioner Spruill asked when EMS would be fully staffed.  Ms. O’Neal said 

hopefully in three weeks.  Commissioner Spruill asked if Transport was supporting itself.  Ms. 
O’Neal said yes for the most part. They are usually waiting for reimbursement from Medicare. 
Mr. Potter stated the numbers for the past few years. 



  DRAFT 

 

Commissioner Spruill said EMS continues to lose money.  What is the main cause of 
that, he asked.  Ms. O’Neal said he would be hard pressed to find a county that didn’t lose 
money. Washington County tries to reclaim losses through Debt Set-Off. 
 

Chair Walker thanked Ms. O’Neal and her staff for what they are doing for the citizens of 
Washington County. 

 
DSS CHILD SUPPORT PROGRAM STAFFING:  Mr. Clifton Hardison, DSS Director, spoke 
to the Board and made a presentation to the Board.  [This presentation will be attached to these 
minutes and herein incorporated by such reference.] 

 
Commissioner Johnson asked does this include children that they don’t have anywhere to 

place them.  Mr. Hardison and Ms. Swett both replied that is a separate program. 
 
Commissioner Keyes said she worked in that department years ago, so she supports DSS. 
 
Commissioner Johnson said what you are saying is that you would like to go out and hire 

outside contractors for this service.  
 
Mr. Potter asked the Commissioners to authorize staff to work with DSS to bring back a 

solution to the Board.  
 
EMERGENCY MANGEMENT BUILDING/GOVERNMENT CENTER:  Mr. Curtis 

Potter, CM/CA spoke to the Board. 
 
Mr. Potter said the Emergency Management Building Government Center is the 2nd 

largest capital project we have. There is $3.2M SCIF funding and $1M local funding for a joint 
EM and aviation terminal. This has moved slowly due to the PK12 school project. We are now 
trying to catch up on this project; however, we are running into roadblocks from the aviation 
side.  We may need to go at this from a different side.  

 
Mr. Potter asked the Board to authorize staff to work with advisory Facilities Committee to 

look for alternative sites to be able to move forward with this. Staff has talked to Commissioners 
Spruill and Keyes at length. Would like to bring back something at a future Commissioners’ 
meeting. 

 
EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION EVENTS & SCHEDULE:  Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to 

the Board spoke to the Commissioners. 
 
The Clerk to the Board discussed the upcoming employee appreciation event schedule 

recommended by the Employee Appreciation Committee summarized as follows: 
 
1. Fall Fling Employee Appreciation Event: October 20th, 2023, 12PM to 3PM 

(*change to 5PM) 
a. Catered lunch meal 

2. Holiday Meal - Employee Appreciation Event: December 15, 2023 
a. Either a breakfast from 930AM to 12PM; or 
b. Lunch from 12PM to 230PM 



  DRAFT 

 

 
Ms. Bennett asked that the Board authorize staff to conduct the proposed employee 

appreciation events according to the schedule indicated, and to close all non-essential 
government offices to permit employees to participate during regularly scheduled work hours. 

 
Mr. Potter said that the Department Head survey showed that the Fall Fling was well 

received and asked for the Board to authorize the Fall Fling on October 20, 2023, from 12:00 
noon – 5:00 PM at Flower’s Park in Plymouth. 

 
Mr. Potter also asked the Board if they would agree to an Employee Christmas Breakfast 

this year from 9:30 am – 11:30 am.  This event will still be held at the Plymouth Church of 
Christ Family Learning Center.  The Service Awards will be presented, as usual, at this  
employee event. 

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Employee Appreciation 

Committee events and closing of offices as presented.  Commissioner Johnson seconded; 
motion carried unanimously. 
  
 BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   
 
 SENIOR CENTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

Ms. Bennett noted that the Senior Center Director has requested that the Board of 
Commissioners appoint the following citizens to serve on the Senior Center Advisory 
Committee.   

 
Sandra Purrington 
Janet Norman 
Ora Rowson 
Geraldine Davenport 
Karen Clay-Respess 
Marva Redd 
 
All have agreed to serve. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the appointments as listed above to the 
Senior Center Advisory Committee. Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ Agenda Package. [The Budget Amendments 
/Budget Transfers will be attached to these minutes and herein incorporated by such reference.] 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve BT# 2023-157, # 2023-158, #2023-
159, #2023-159, #2023-160, #2023-161, #2023-162, #2023-163, BA# 2023-164, #2023-165, 
#2023-166 as presented.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 



  DRAFT 

 

Ms. Dixon gave a handout to Commissioners which shows the initial adopted budget and 
any changes  the Finance Officer has made and what the budget looks like now.  She can add this 
report to her monthly reports if the Commissioners would like to have it. The consensus of the 
Board was for it to be included in the agenda package each month. 
 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   

 
 Commissioner Phelps thanked Mr. Potter for keeping the Board straight. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes said she continues to attend NCACC meetings. 
 
 Ms. Bennett mentioned that “parade season” will soon be upon us and she will keep the 
Commissioners informed as to what they are invited to participate in. 
 
 Mr. Potter mentioned the Faith in Blue event on October 7thand also a listening party on October 
23rd @ 4H Center , Columbia, NC @ 5:30 – 7:30 pm.  
 
 Commissioner Spruill asked about the joint Town meetings with Roper and Creswell. Ms. Bennett 
said she reached out to both mayors and clerks and has only heard from Creswell.   Mr. Potter said he is 
working with the Roper Mayor on another issues and will mention it to her. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to go into Closed Session.  Commissioner Keyes 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Back in Open Session, Mr. Potter said he will be working on a policy regarding exempt employees 
and overtime.  He will bring it back to the next meeting. 
 
 Ms. Bennett said she will make sure to have the correct resolution numbers in the minutes for the 
resolutions that were in the Consent Agenda tonight. She apologized for any confusion.  
 
 Commissioner  Spruill  made a motion to adjourn.  Commissioner  Keyes seconded.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
             Julius Walker, Jr.          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

          Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

                       

 

October 24, 2023 

 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a Special Called Joint Meeting 

with the Creswell Town Council on Tuesday, October 24, 2023, at 6:00 PM in the Creswell 

Town Council Room, 109 W. Main Street, Creswell, NC.  Commissioners Ann C. Keyes, Carol 

V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County 

Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, and Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett.  Commissioner 

Tracey A. Johnson was unable to attend. 

 

 Attendees for the Creswell Town Council:  Joel Harris, Ron Ambrose, Mayor E. Ray 

Blount, Syble Spruill, Brenda Logan, Town Clerk Penny Chapman. 

 

Chair Walker called the Board of Commissioners’ meeting to order and welcomed all 

who were in attendance.  He then asked the Commissioners to introduce themselves. 

 

Mayor Blount called the Creswell Town Council meeting to order and asked the Town 

Council Members to introduce themselves. 

 

Item 1 Items for Discussion 

a) Grant Writing:  Mr. Harris said he understands that Washington County has hired a 

grant writer and asked what they can do for Creswell.  Mr. Potter said yes, we hired 

someone and are in the process of training her.  Ms. Laurie Zoll is the new Grants & 

Procurement Manager.  She is also making a list of all the grants the County is 

involved in,  She is also doing Procurement.  She cannot write all grants for everyone 

but can facilitate working with others to train them.  He said he talked with Ms. Zoll 

today about holding a training meeting for the Town’s folks.  Mr. Harris said it would 

be nice to be able to use her.  Creswell needs a grant for repairing their streets. Mr. 

Potter said he just received an email from Mr. Lou Manring  of the Plymouth 

Downtown Development Association (DDA) with17 pages of available grants. He 

will ask the County Clerk to send the list to the Creswell Town Clerk. 

 

b) Law Enforcement:  Mayor Blount thanked Deputy Chief Arlo Norman for attending tonight’s 

meeting.  Mr. Harris thanked Deputy Chief Norman for all the Sheriff’s Department does and 

knows that they have a lot to do.  He states that they need more enforcement on Main Street 

whenever possible.  Mr. Harris said he appreciates all they do for Creswell.  Deputy Chief 

Norman said the Sheriff’s Office is working on hiring more deputies but will have to send 

them to train first to become certified.  He also said it is a slow process so please bear with 

them.  He hopes to have a better presence in the town.  Mr. Harris asked if there were any 

areas of crime he would like to address. Deputy Chief Norman said there are some things that 

are being worked on which he cannot elaborate. 

 

c) Intergovernmental Cooperation Opportunities: Mr. Harris said he would like to see more 

meetings with the Board of Commissioners--maybe once a quarter or twice a year.  

Commissioner Keyes said we are all in this together and want to enhance the lives of all our 

citizens.  Commissioner Spruill said we need to do a better job of working together.  There 

seems to have been a separation of the towns and the County over the years. We all need to 



DRAFT  

 

pull together.  Commissioner Phelps said he enjoys coming to the Town meetings.  He told 

the Town Council to get up with him if there is anything he can do. Chair Walker said we 

will put everything from all the agendas to see how we can work together and pull together. 

We are not meeting just to be meeting.  Ms. Logan said thanks for listening to their needs.  

Sometimes they do feel left out and thanked the Commissioners for coming tonight.  Ms. 

Spruill stated that the more active you are in the community the more active you are in the 

County. She said she appreciates the Commissioners.  Mayor Blount said he appreciates the 

Commissioners and wants us all to work together.  Commissioner Keyes said that if they 

know what to expect from each other we are not working against each other. She cited the 

Ordinances as an example of something that could be improved on together.  We all need to 

share resources. Mr. Harris thinks that keeping the lines of communication open now and, in 

the future, and identifying resources is a good start. Commissioner Keyes said that we need a 

resource database from all towns.  Mr. Harris said maybe they could borrow a backhoe or 

dump truck, as an example, if needed for wastewater  activities.  

 

Commissioner Spruill asked what their #1 need is. Mr. Harris said 8th Street and Palmetto 

Street need the most repair. They have tried repairing potholes.  He also mentioned 6th Street 

and Main street are mostly handled by the State.  New businesses need parking areas marked.  

All streets need something.  Commissioner Spruill asked if there were any other pressing 

issues.  Ms. Logan stated WATER!  Mr. Harris said he does not know if the County can help 

with that.  She also said it would be nice to have a park area in town. Maybe there is a grant 

for that?  Mr. Harris said he would also like to see their schools utilized after the new school 

is built.  Mr. Ambrose asked has if there is a designated area for an LZ helicopter landing in 

Creswell.  Mr. Potter said there may be something in the Motorsports Grant (at the OBX 

Speedway in Creswell).  It is in the planning process.  Mr. Potter said there is a well for 

Creswell in the County’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  Mr. Ambrose thanked the 

Commissioners for all they do. He said he knows there is only so much you can do with the 

money available.  The Commissioners do a good job of keeping the public informed and 

believes in communication.  These meetings are a good way to let our citizens know we are 

working together.  We need prayers for the Town of Creswell’s water situation. A lightning 

strike took out some of their system. Mr. Potter said we need to send Creswell information on 

the well and the LZ landing zone. The County now has a CIP to try and fund major projects 

for the County. It is a two-year plan. There is a community action board that has started in 

Skinnersville. Remember to work with your Commissioner and the County Manager.  

 

Commissioner Keyes told the Crewell Town Council that when you have a solar farm in your 

area, sometimes they will help the areas they are in, for example, they may give a donation of 

some kind.   

 

Commissioner Walker thanked the Creswell Town Council for their reception of wanting to 

have this meeting.  The Commissioners will get together after all these Town meetings to see 

where to go from here.  

 

Commissioner Phelps noted that the County’s Veterans Day Service will be on 11/11 @ 

11:00 AM and will be on Main Street in Creswell. He also noted there was a Fall Festival on 

10/27 from 4:00-7:00 PM and the Christmas Parade is on 12/9 at 11:00 AM.  Line-up is at 

10:00 AM. 



DRAFT  

 

Mr. Ambrose said the County’s Veterans Day event is a big deal.  There needs to be an area 

set up to be able to move the monument to and have a nicer area that is more accessible to 

folks with disabilities. 

 

Item 2  Public Forum—no comments. 

 

  Mayor Blount again thanked the Commissioners for coming tonight. Mr. Ambrose said it 

does him good to see this participation.  

 

 Mr. Harris noted that Creswell also needs a gas station.  Mr. Potter asked if the Dollar General  

in Creswell is owned by a local person. No one knew.  Mr. Potter said that some Dollar Generals have 

gas tanks. One citizen said he has looked into it and it would not make any money.  A gas station would 

need a convenience store too.  

 

 Mr. Potter said maybe they could look into an electrical vehicle charging station for Creswell 

due to the number of travelers going through the town to the Outer Banks.  

 

 Mr. Harris said it is having the connections--knowing who to talk to. 

 

 One citizen noted that Creswell needs more vegetable stands in the area. 

 

 Commissioner Keyes said it may be easier to get grants if we all work together. 

 

 Mayor Blount dismissed everyone at the meeting. 

 

______________________________  _____________________________ 

             Julius Walker, Jr.          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

          Chair              Clerk to the Board 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT  

 

                       
 

November 1, 2023 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a Special Called Joint Meeting 
with the Roper Town Council on Wednesday, November 1, 2023, at 6:00 PM in the Roper 
Annex Building, 114 N. Railroad Street, Roper, NC.  Commissioners Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. 
Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County 
Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, and Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett. Commissioner 
Tracey A. Johnson was unable to attend. 
 
 Attendees for the Roper Town Council:  Mayor Denise Blount; Councilmen: Rona 
Norman, Charles Sharpe, Melvin Norman, and Roper Town Clerk Stacy Chesson. Councilman 
Ramona Jackson was unable to attend. 
 

Chair Walker called the Board of Commissioners’ meeting to order and welcomed all 
who were in attendance.  He then asked the Commissioners & staff to introduce themselves. 

 
Mayor Blount called the Roper Town Council meeting to order and asked the Town 

Council Members to introduce themselves. 
 

Item 1 Items for Discussion: 
 

a) Water: Mayor Blount spoke about interconnections. Mr. Potter said the connections 
are working but the meters are broken; they are not working the way they were 
initially designed. The County did get a grant to fix those 3 connections. Mayor 
Blount said 2 connections have been turned off that are on the County side. She asked 
why they would be turned back on if they hadn’t been using them.  Mr. Lee Sasser, 
Public Utilities Director, addressed the issue. Those connections only allow water out 
(one way). With the new meters, the County can open those lines if one of the other 
lines/meters has a problem. Mr. Potter said the grant gives the County more flexibility 
to fix more issues. We need to fix what is broken. Mr. Potter went on to say there will 
be a trial by the engineers to tell us what will work best. The Mayor said she doesn’t 
want water bills shooting up for the residents (mostly who are elderly). Mr. Potter 
said we will be looking out for that, so it doesn’t happen. 
 

b) Garbage:  Mayor Blount said they have 203 customers that pay $22.95 a month for garbage 
(SWUF). The rates changed after their budget was done and the Town had to pay the 
difference. Mayor Blount asked if the County can they charge the residents instead of 
charging the Town. Mr. Potter said the County bills the Town and the Town bills the citizen. 
Mr. Potter said the County could send the bills to the citizens like we do for Creswell.  The 
County would need a request from the Town Council of Roper to do this. Mr. Potter said that 
the County can’t add it to the Roper citizen’s tax bill until July 1.  Mayor Blount asked how 
they can get the broken trash cans picked up. Mr. Mike Gray, Landfill Director, said to call 
the Landfill and they will make a request to Republic to pick them up. Discussion turned to 
how citizens are charged for taking items to the landfill.  Mr. Gray said the first 2000 lbs. (1 
ton) is free then the customer pays $60 for the next ton. 

 



DRAFT  

 

c) Zoning: Mayor Blount discussed being contacted by Mr. Richard Livingston, former Sr. 
Project Manager, regarding zoning in Roper. Town Clerk, Ms. Stacy Chesson, said he led 
them to believe that Washington County was going to take over zoning for the Town of 
Roper. Mr. Potter said there was a change in the general statutes regarding Land Use Plans 
for the towns and the counties. The Mayor said they adopted a Land Use Plan. Mr. Potter 
said if that is the case then they are in charge of their zoning. The County can issue building 
permits when needed. Commissioner Keyes said that Mr. Pittman (Planning/ Inspection/ 
Zoning Director) will be able to give Mayor Blount some resources.  Mr. Potter said he 
would send Mayor Blount some high-level documents to look at – including 160D which is 
what they should look at first. Then the Town of Roper will need to have a Zoning 
Ordinance.  Discussion ensued regarding getting approvals from the Building Inspector. 

 
d)  Intergovernmental Cooperation Opportunities:  Mayor Blount said there needs to be better 

communication between the Town and County. Mr. Potter said he feels we should have some 
meetings with the Departments that they deal with the most (such as Planning).  Mr. Potter 
said if the person (Department Head) is busy maybe they can still give the Town the 
resources they need to help them. Mr. Potter said the Town should contact the Department 
Heads, then himself, then the Commissioners. 
 
Council Sharpe asked if the school in Roper will still be needed after the new school 
is built.  Mr. Potter said there is an agreement to move the Early College to Roper. 
 
Mr. Sharpe asked if Roper could get a gas station (near Mill Pond). It would be a 
great economic opportunity.  
 
Commissioner Keyes addressed how the Inspector/Planning Office works—speaking 
as a retired planner.  She also went over how citizens can put their numbers in Hyper-
Reach so citizens will get important information. 
 
Chair Walker thanked the Town Council for their concerns and comments and said the 
Commissioners are not meeting just to be meeting.  The Board will take all this feedback 
from the three (3) towns and see what we can do together. 
 
Mayor Blount thanked the Board for taking the time to meet.  She said she learned a lot 
tonight.  Mayor Blount asked Mr. Sasser if there is a problem with something in Roper, that 
as a courtesy, would he please let the Town know (relating to 811 locate requests).  Mr. 
Potter will work with Mr. Sasser on the best way to do this. 
 

Item 2  Public Forum: no comments. 
 
  Commissioner Phelps made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Keyes 
seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
             Julius Walker, Jr.          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

          Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda November 6, 2023
	11-6-2023 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds, Involvents
	RESO 2023-034 , 035, 036 surplus property
	RESO 2023-037 Proclamation Veterans Day 2023 (Updated)
	11-6-2023 Item 2 (public forum)
	11-6-2023 Item 3 Dept. Info Update-Coop Ext
	11-6-2023 Item 4 4 life Training
	Commissioners.--A. Ward 4 Life Training Awareness in WC
	RACE CARS Trials
	Did you know?
	RAndomized Cluster Evaluation of Cardiac ARrest Systems
	Cardic Arrest
	CPR
	4-Life Training
	AED
	Donated AED’s 
	Time frames
	So, I bet you are asking “what do you want?”
	Thank you!

	11-6-2023 Item 5 Update Family Violence Prevention
	11-6-2023 Item 6 Rezoning Public Hearing
	BOCC Memo re Rezoning Hearing Jernigan Proprerties ZO90723-01 for 20231106 BOCC mtg w attach
	11-6-2023 Item 7 Exempt Flex Time Off Policy
	BOCC Memo re Exempt EE Bonus Time Off - Comp Time for 20231106 BOCC mtg w attachments
	11-6-2023 Item 8 Boards & Committees
	11-6-2023 Item 9 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Transfers and Amendments-October 23
	October 23 Finance Report
	11-6-2023 Item 10 Other Items
	11-6-2023 Item 11 Closed Session
	Reports for 10-2-2023 BoC Meeting
	FY23-24 Statisitc Report (2)
	 Tax
	Senior Center
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Sheriff's Office
	Utilities
	Landfill

	8-7-2023 minutes
	8-28-2023 Minutes-- Special Called Joint Meeting BoCC & Town of Plymouth
	9-5-2023 minutes
	9-26-2023 minutes --Special Called Joint Mtg BoCC & BOE
	10-2-2023 minutes
	10-24-2023 Minutes-- Special Called Joint Meeting BoCC & Town of Creswell
	11-1-2023 Minutes-- Special Called Joint Meeting BoCC & Town of Roper



